S
CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEERBERESRALA

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(e V5% B E Mo 2 A R A ] )
Stock code Bt RHE : 116

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 = 35



CORPORATE INFORMATION

LEER

Board of Directors Exg

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing KRR e
Chairman and Group General Manager FTEREFGKE

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing AR B

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing Bk E
Group Deputy General Manager EEF T

Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing ARzt

Non-executive Directors FHTEE

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRELE

Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam WML

Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBRTEE

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun PR B B

Mr. LEE Ka Lun FRELE

Dr. LO King Man ESXEL

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung R E

Company Secretary DNRMWE

Mr. Morison CHAN Chi Kong BREHLE

Registered Office A EE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Principal Place of Business TEEXRMH

4/F, Chow Sang Sang Building O

229 Nathan Road, Kowloon NUBETR B 229 5%

Hong Kong BEERELIE

Legal Advisers EEER

Baker & McKenzie By - EREEMELM
Wilkinson & Grist SEEEMT

Auditor BB

Ernst & Young K EFTRI BT
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor MR Filz B R 20
Principal Bankers TEFRBT

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited BITRIT(BE)BR AR
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited BIFRITEEBRAA]
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited EALEEERITERAF
Hang Seng Bank Limited EARITARRA
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited PR IERITROBRAE
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited HRERIT(BB)BRAF
BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch EBEBRBTEAEDT
Website @k

www.chowsangsang.com www.chowsangsang.com



https://www.chowsangsang.com/en/home
https://www.chowsangsang.com/tc/home

CONTENTS
&

) Financial Highlights
BHE

3 Chairman’s Message
TIEHE

4 Board of Directors and Senior Management
EEERAREEAER

9  Management Discussion and Analysis 71 Independent Auditor’s Report
SRR E SR B RS

21 Report of the Directors 79  Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
EE-REs REEmK

31  Environmental, Social and Governance Report 81 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
RIE - HEeRERWRSE FEEElEaE

56  Corporate Governance Report 82  Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EERME eI E

84 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RAEREER

86  Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BERERER

88 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MBRERNRE

199 Particulars of Properties Held
gt E =3

203 Definitions

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 1 ANNUAL REPORT 2022
AE4“SBEBEBERRQA 2022 4 3R



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Turnover

Retail

Other businesses

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to owners of the Company
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Earnings per share — Basic and diluted

FRRER®
S
TE

HAb %5

RRBERABIEFR
Rl (&E)
RIERERD

BREFN - EXREE

MBERE

2022
HK$’000
FTExT

2021
HK$'000
TAT

19,751,940 19,921,938
804,576 2,065,621

20,556,516 21,987,559

486,365 743,868
(34,039) (100,611)
452,326 643,257

For profit for the year F A5 A 66.8 cents {li  95.0 cents
For profit from continuing operations FERE X RN 71.8 cents il 109.8 cents fllI
Dividend per share BREE
— Interim — 1 Ef 15.0 cents il  14.0 cents 1l
— Final — RHA 15.0 cents fli  28.0 cents I
Total dividend per share for the year > FEERR L5 30.0 cents fli  42.0 cents fllI
Dividend payout ratio RELEZE 45% 44%
Equity attributable to owners of the AREEE AELER
Company 11,890,543 12,753,120
Equity per share SRER $17.6 T $18.8 7T
Turnover - Continuing operations
Year BER - REKEXER
Fn 19,752 805 Ret "
2022 | 20,557 eturn on equity
% [B
2021 19,922 2,066 21,988 %
2020 13,098 1,900| 14,998
2019 16,258 1454/ 17,712
2018 17,130 16421 18,772
0 6,000 12,000 18,000 24,000
HK$'M
’ M Retail T Other businesses Efth %7 ‘ BEBT

Profit attributable to owners of the Company - Continuing operations

AATBEEANELRERT - SELCEEYR
Year
FH
2022 — 486
2021 | 744
2020 | 639
2019 | 1,000
2018 | 972
0 200 400 600 800 1,000 1,200
HK$'M
BEBT

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

AEESEBREREAERRQA

0

-35%
-66%

-30%

-30%
-35%

-7%
-7%

3.8%

2  ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022 4 3R

| | | | |
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Year

F10



CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

In 2022 the Group's operations was heavily impacted by the pandemic.
At the same time, the fall in the exchange rate of Renminbi and the
swings of the price of gold joined force with the drop in business to
bring the Group's profit down 30% from the prior year to HK$452
million.

Nevertheless, it appears that we are finally able to leave behind the
nightmare of the pandemic. Over the lunar new year holidays in January
2023, business on the Mainland, Macau and Hong Kong as well, was
very encouraging. And beginning with March, travel has resumed,
streets are crowded, and eateries are bustling. Life is getting back to
normalcy.

But the fading of the threat of covid-19 only puts into even starker
contrast the spectre of geopolitical conflicts. At the same time, the
major economies of the world are showing worrying signs of weakness.
It is not inconceivable that trade issues could become catalysts for
military actions. The world is fraught with uncertainty.

Closer to home, post pandemic we face challenges such as labour
shortage, climbing interest rates, fast-changing consumer tastes and, no
less, climate change. We shall press on with our efforts in digitisation
and automation as means to enhance employees’ job satisfaction, to
make our management structure more agile and effective, and to enable
us to press on to our sustainability goals.

| thank our staff, our shareholders, our suppliers and other stakeholders
for their unflinching support and trust.

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun, MB, BS, DMRT, aged 89, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He has been with the Group for over 45 years. Dr. CHAN
is a medical doctor in private practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, aged 76, is an
Executive Director of the Company, the Chairman of the Board, the
Group General Manager and a director of a number of subsidiaries
within the Group. Mr. CHOW is the cousin of Dr. Gerald CHOW King
Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and the father of Ms. Genevieve
CHOW Karwing. He is a director of Everwin Company Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. CHOW has been with
the Group for over 40 years, having been the Group General Manager
and the Chairman since 1998 and 2013 respectively. He was the
Chairman of the Home Affairs Bureau to its Advisory Committee on Arts
Development, and is currently a member of the Culture Commission
and a member of the Board of Governors of City University of Hong
Kong Foundation. Mr. CHOW was made an Honorary Fellow of the
Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts; and he serves as a Director of
the Board of The Hong Kong International Film Festival Society Limited,
which is a not-for-profit organisation. He is a member of the Board of
Governors and a member of the College Council of the UOW College
Hong Kong.

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, aged 66, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He is a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company and a director of a number of subsidiaries within the Group.
He has joined the Group for over 35 years. Dr. CHOW is the elder
brother of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, a cousin of Mr. Vincent
CHOW Wing Shing and an uncle of Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing. He
is a director of Speed Star Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. For community services in Hong Kong, Dr. CHOW is
an expert member of the “Managing World Cities” Programme of the
Faculty of Social Sciences, The University of Hong Kong. He was a panel
member of the Public Affairs Forum under the Home Affairs Bureau,
HKSAR until its cessation of operation in 2018, a former member of
the Central Policy Unit of the Hong Kong Government (2009-2011)
and a former council member of The Better Hong Kong Foundation
(2007-2015). Dr. CHOW also served in the Central and Western District
Fight Crime Committee (2009-2011). He is an honorary member of
the Hong Kong Fire Services Officers’ Mess and the founding President
of the Central and Western District Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary
Presidents’ Association of the Hong Kong Fire Services Department.
Dr. CHOW has been a voting member of the Po Leung Kuk Advisory
Board since 1997. He is also a member of the Bauhinia Foundation
Research Centre and the Hong Kong Strategy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 69, was an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Secretary of the Company until September 2004. He
was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company on
28 September 2004. Mr. TING is a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He is an independent non-executive director of seven other listed
companies in Hong Kong, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.,
Tongda Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited,
Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong International
Group Limited (formerly known as Texhong Textile Group Limited),
Dongyue Group Limited and China SCE Group Holdings Limited.
Mr. TING is an accountant in public practice and has more than 40 years
of experience in this field. Currently, he is a partner of Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan, Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam, GBS, OBE, JP, LL.B (Lond.) (Hons), aged 82, is
a Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 26 June 1995 and re-designated as a
Non-executive Director in September 2004. Mr. CHUNG is a solicitor
in practice. Apart from being a China-appointed Attesting Officer and
a Hong Kong Notary Public, he is also an independent non-executive
director of two other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely S E A
Holdings Limited and Datronix Holdings Limited.

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, aged 65, is an Executive Director
of the Company, the Group Deputy General Manager and a director
of a number of subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. CHOW has been
with the Group since 1984 (except 1988 to 1992) and has become the
Group Deputy General Manager since 1995. Mr. CHOW is the younger
brother of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, a cousin of Mr. Vincent CHOW
Wing Shing and an uncle of Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing. He has
experience in real estate in Canada. Mr. CHOW's key responsibilities
include the product development and staff learning and development
of the Group’s jewellery business in Greater China. He is the Chairman
of Jewellery Advisory Committee and a member of Product Promotion
Programme Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council,
a Vice-chairman of the Quality Tourism Services Association and a
member of the Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee under
the Qualifications Framework of the Education Bureau.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Ka Lun, FCCA, aged 67, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, and the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 September 2004. Mr. LEE is an accountant by
profession and has over 25 years of experience in banking and auditing.
He was the Regional Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc and
Regional Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations
in Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience in corporate
banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and
general management. He serves as an independent non-executive
director of three other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Yuexiu
Property Company Limited, Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited and
Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited. Mr. LEE served as an independent non-
executive director of Medicskin Holdings Limited until 15 November
2022. Mr. LEE continues to serve as an independent non-executive
director of Chong Hing Bank Limited (“Chong Hing”) after its listing
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited was withdrawn on 30
September 2021. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited, a holding company of Chong Hing.

Dr. LO King Man, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, FRSA, FHKU, UFHKPU, FHKAPA,
DocHKAPA, Cavaliere (Order of Merit, Italy), Chevalier (Order of Arts
and Letters, France), aged 85, is an Independent Non-executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28 September
2004. Following a career in higher education management, Dr. LO held
appointments as Director of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing
Arts during 1993 to 2004 and as Principal of the Canton International
Summer Music Academy established by the Guangdong Government
during 2004 to 2009. His public service included vice-chairmanship of
the former Urban Council and membership of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Basic Law Consultative Committee, Examination
Authority, Broadcasting Authority, Vocational Training Council and Arts
Development Council. He has served on governing boards of numerous
educational and cultural organisations. Dr. LO is the Chairman of the
Hong Kong Arts Festival Programme Committee and the Vice Chairman
of the Hong Kong Arts Festival Executive Committee. Dr. LO is also the
Director-general of Musica Viva Limited. He is an independent non-
executive director of another listed company in Hong Kong - Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung, OBE, JP, aged 77, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 17 December 2012. Mr. LAU is a qualified
electrical engineer, and a member of The Institution of Engineering
and Technology, United Kingdom, and with a postgraduate degree of
Master of Science from the University of Surrey, England. He has more
than 30 years of management and marketing experience, particularly in
the textile and apparel field. Mr. LAU is the managing director of The
Polyfabrics (Hong Kong) Limited. He was appointed as a member to
vice-chairman of the Urban Council from 1978 to 1995. Mr. LAU was
also appointed as a member of various committees, boards, and panels,
namely the Textiles Advisory Board, the Trade and Industry Advisory
Board, the Administrative Appeals Board, the Air Transport Licensing
Authority, the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance), the Broadcasting Authority, etc. He also
served as a Council Member of The University of Hong Kong from 1985
to 1997. Mr. LAU is active in several charitable organisations and in
Chiu Chow community associations.

Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing, aged 38, is an Executive Director of
the Company since 1 November 2021. She joined the Group in 2010
and is the Group's General Manager of Omni-channel Development.
Ms. CHOW is a daughter of Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing and a
niece to both Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing. She is a director of Everwin Company Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Ms. CHOW leads the Group’s e-Commerce
business and is responsible for the development of strategic initiatives
to better position the Group to deliver a holistic omni-channel shopping
experience. Since 2018, Ms. CHOW has also been the Brand Director
of EMPHASIS and PROMESSA, overseeing the branding, business
development and product management. Ms. CHOW holds a dual
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Science of Earth Systems and Economics from
Cornell University. She is a GIA Applied Jewellery Professional (A.J.P.)
and GIA Diamonds Graduate. She is an Executive Committee member of
The Hong Kong Retail Management Association.

Mr. Morison CHAN Chi Kong, FCPA, FCCA, HKFCG, FCG, CFA, MBA,
aged 55, is the Company Secretary of the Company, the Group’s Chief
Financial Officer and a director of certain subsidiaries within the Group.
Mr. CHAN joined the Group in February 2020 and has over 30 years of
experience in accounting, auditing, corporate finance and management.
Mr. CHAN is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
("ACCA"), the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the
Chartered Governance Institute, and a Chartered Financial Analyst. He
is the past Chairman of ACCA Hong Kong. Mr. CHAN is currently a
member of the Professional Development Sub-committee of ACCA Hong
Kong. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of The Jewellers’
and Goldsmiths" Association of Hong Kong Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAU Hak Bun, aged 70, is the Group’s General Manager — Retail
Operations (Greater China) and a director of a subsidiary within the
Group. Mr. LAU has been with the Group for over 50 years. He is well-
experienced in sales management. Apart from managing the retail
operations in Hong Kong and Macau, Mr. LAU is also responsible for
the development of operational strategies in Greater China. He also
serves as the Vice-chairman of The Hong Kong Jewellers” & Goldsmiths'’
Association Ltd. and the Chairman of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious
Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association. Mr. LAU
is a founder member of The Jewellers' and Goldsmiths’ Association of
Hong Kong Limited. He also serves as Honorary President, President or
Consultant of various organisations in the industry.

Ms. Cecilia YIM Sze Nga, aged 47, is the Group’s Chief Market
Strategy Officer. Ms. YIM joined the Group in December 2013 and has
over 25 years of experience in marketing communication and brand
management. Ms. YIM is responsible for the multi-brand development
strategy, brand experience and marketing communication in the Group.
Ms. YIM's experience covered a variety of industries including digital
advertising strategy and creative services with one of the world'’s
top three marketing communication groups, as well as the Regional
Marketing Director of one of the top three wine and spirit companies in
Asia Pacific. Ms. YIM holds a Bachelor of Social Science Degree in digital
graphic communication from School of Communication of Hong Kong
Baptist University.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

It was a rollercoaster ride. In the beginning of 2022, just before the
Chinese New Year, retail sales on the Mainland started an uptake which
was soon wiped out by a new wave of the pandemic. Many parts of the
Mainland were then subjected to large-scale crowd control measures
that precluded any public activities for weeks on end. A respite came
around June, and jewellery and watch sales started to pick up through
the third quarter. However, in the fourth quarter, widespread infections
shut down cities again. Quite a significant number of our stores had
to suspend business because of the lack of uninfected staff, if not the
enforced closures.

In 2022 then, the loss of business due to the pandemic, partially
offset by sales generated at new stores but compounded by the fall in
Renminbi, led to a 4% year-on-year decline in jewellery and watch sales
on the Mainland. Gold was very much at the centre stage: in Renminbi
terms, gold jewellery sales in Mainland China actually increased by 3%
year-on-year, while gem-set jewellery sales recorded a decrease of 16%.
Watch sales went up 10%.

In Hong Kong, although the first quarter sales were decimated by the
pandemic, from April onward sales rebounded sharply, buoyed no doubt
by the consumption vouchers. Growth in sales were recorded for most
of the remaining months of the year. In 2022, Hong Kong and Macau
gold jewellery sales grew by 15%, gem-set jewellery up 7% but watch
sales decreased by 13%, and thus the combined jewellery and watch
sales increased 8% year-on-year.

All territories combined, jewellery and watch sales decreased by 1%
year-on-year.

The Group's consolidated turnover from continuing operations
decreased by 7% to HK$20,557 million in 2022. The overall gross
margin from continuing operations stood at 26.3% (2021: 25.3%).
Depreciation of Renminbi and rebound in international gold price during
the fourth quarter caused significant exchange loss and unrealised
net fair value loss on bullion loans in 2022. The Group's profit before
tax from continuing operations decreased by 41% to HK$593 million
in 2022. In terms of combined segment contributions and taking out
the material exceptional effects, total segment results from continuing
operations decreased by 15% to HK$829 million.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by 30% to
HK$452 million. Profit attributable to owners of the Company from
continuing operations decreased by 35% to HK$486 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Analysis by Geographical Area
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Retail of Jewellery and Watches

KREREKTE

Retail Turnover

B EZH

The first half of 2022 was seriously affected by the pandemic, especially
in Eastern China. Rebound in sales in the second half of the year and
sales from new stores could not offset the impact of the pandemic and
the fall in Renminbi. Total 2022 sales decreased by 1% (in Renminbi)
and 4% (in Hong Kong dollar) year-on-year, while same-store-sales
decreased by 5% year-on-year. Segment results were down 31% as a
result of higher gold sales mix and operating deleveraging.
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Segment revenue Segment results
2 Wz 7 EREE
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
TET FHT g FTHERT FET b4
(Restated)
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13,697,207 14,315,010 -4% 531,803 767,867 -31%
5,823,648 5,416,999 +8% 320,006 209,293 +53%
231,085 189,929 +22% 19,794 10,102 +96%
19,751,940 19,921,938 1% 871,603 987,262 -12%
o B A E

022F FH¥FEXIRENBREFE 1N
ERWRFELE T¥FEHEREM
MEFMEENHEE  EXEERBMAR
BTUHEEE 2002FMNEEERIRE
TB1% (AARBEE )M 4% (A BB
) MEEHESEEFTH% - HRK
SNESHEEMLEMEENEERL 2
TMEETH31% -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022 F



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEBNWR DN

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

BKERERTE(HE)
Analysis by Geographical Area (continued) B ESH (&)
Mainland China (continued) H B A BE (4

Mainland China Sales Mix
FEAEHEAS

2021 2022 Products =

Gold jewellery and products 4 & 52 M
B Gem-set jewellery SEH 3T
Platinum/Karat gold jewellery $A% /K& #fim

- Watches 8k

71% 74%

2022 1Hvs 2021 1H

2022 2H vs 2021 2H

2022 FY vs 2021 FY
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SSSG [FE HE & 2021 FHFE 201F 45 202152 F
Gold jewellery and =& H#R K

products Em -4% +4% -1%
Gem-set jewellery ERUE -17% -26% 21%
Watches iR -24% +47% +5%
Overall = -9% 0% -5%
e With our major markets in Fastern and Southern China impacted o HMREMUNRERNMEZZTED
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by the pandemic, overall contraction in SSSG expanded from
-6% in the first quarter to -14% in the second quarter. Following
the easing of pandemic in the third quarter, SSSG rebounded to
+10%. However, SSSG fell sharply to -9% in the fourth quarter
due to pandemic resurgence.

e While gold jewellery sales were hit by the pandemic during the *
traditional festival peak season in the first half of the year, sales
returned to growth track in the second half of the year, partly
driven by the fall in international gold price.

o The gem-set jewellery market continued to be weak, especially for *
high unit price diamond jewellery, resulted in -21% SSSG for gem-
set jewellery in 2022.

o Watch supply was delayed by the pandemic in the first half of the *
year. SSSG of watches rebounded rapidly in the second half of the

year. 5 o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Analysis by Geographical Area (continued)

Hong Kong and Macau

Hong Kong and Macau operations were hit hard by the pandemic after
Chinese New Year in 2022, with low customer traffic and intermittent
closure of stores. Since April, the gradual relaxation of social distancing
measures, the distribution of consumption vouchers as well as the fall in
international gold price had stimulated retail spending. Turnover in 2022

increased by 8% year-on-year while segment results were up 53%.

iy

BB (F)

EEBREF
BBMBPIZERER 2022 F
BERETE HEALRKHY
RS BRI M PR 3 o @4)%%1@
ELRME REHEHBFENEES
HTEHBEEL LHE A - 2022
BT FF8%

Hong Kong and Macau Sales Mix
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2021

62% ' 66%

2022 1Hvs 2021 1H

2022 Products &

Mo EEE EF53%

Gold jewellery and products &4 &5 & & &

Gem-set jewellery SEfRIKE

Platinum/Karat gold jewellery $A4 /K &idn

Watches $88%

2022 2H vs 2021 2H

2022 FY vs 2021 FY

2022 FH¥EFE 2022¢T¥¢F 202225
Lt 3| b ¥
SSSG 5 HE LR 2021F FHFE 2021¢T#¢F 202152 F
Gold jewellery and =efmMk
products Em -3% +30% +15%

Gem-set jewellery ERUE +14% +2% +8%

Watches i 21% +2% 1%

Overall et ] -5% +20% +8%

o Overall SSSG recovered rapidly from -27% in the first quarter s EBRAEHERERNRE-—ZTE
to +19% in the second quarter, and subsequently to +38% in B-27% MR MENE=-FE R
the third quarter owing to the continued growth momentum. +19% @ REBRIBLEEZE=F
However, SSSG fell back to +2% in the fourth quarter due to SH)+38% © (BRI FER BN A
an increase in number of local infections towards the end of the REANEEN - ARBEERRNEE
year and an outflow of local spending following cross-border AR B RHBEING - EWF
prevention measures adjustment. BEREHEERBEE+2% °

e The gradual relaxation of social distancing measures and the o 2002FAMRERERESINE
increase in wedding and gifting activities in 2022 led to an IR AQEEIEm - S8 THE
increase in sales of gold and gem-set jewellery. T R BRKEHEER o \

e The “Infini Love Diamond” collection marketing campaign o [2FEIZRIIMERSERMKR M
achieved good results, but sales of high unit price diamond THFEREEEAMHmASON -
jewellery softened in the second half of the year, stifling gem-set ERT T HEEERAENREHE
jewellery SSSG in the second half of the year. B B

e Watch sales in the first half of the year were affected by the o HEFEMNERHEXIZIEMMRE
pandemic disruptions and supply shortage. The sales normalised in RROTE - TYFENHESRE
the second half of the year. EEKE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Analysis by Geographical Area (continued)

Taiwan

Taiwan business has enjoyed healthy growth over the past few
years. Supported by an orderly store expansion strategy and SSSG
improvement, 2022 sales and segment results grew by 22% and 96%
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respectively. JEHERRNE -
Store Network DIEHE
/ As at As at
31.12.2021 31.12.2022
Region 12021 F Opening Closure Net change | 12022 ¥
HE 12A31H HE 3 FE 12A31H
Chow Sang Sang | A%£4 635 +94 -32 +62 697
[AEE BEEE 55 +20 -6 +14 69
HE 0 ETF HE o ETF
(Qasis by Chow
Sang Sang)
Mainland China | Rolex/Tudor Bht /w5 13 +1 0 +1 14
REARE &
MINTYGREEN MINTYGREEN 34 +20 -4 +16 50
EMPHASIS EMPHASIS 19 +4 -4 0 19
PROMESSA PROMESSA 18 +7 -1 +6 24
MARCO BICEGO | MARCO BICEGO 1 0 0 0 1
Sub-total: /)\st : 775 +146 -47 +99 874
Chow Sang Sang | A%% 44 +2 -1 +1 45
Hong Kong Rolex/Tudor “ht/wh 1 0 1 1 10
B EMPHASS EMPHASS 5 0 1 | 4
PROMESSA PROMESSA 1 +1 0 +1 2
Sub-total: /]\at - 61 +3 3 0 61
Macau BiED 2 5 +3 0 +3 8
BF
Sub-total: 7)\st : 5 +3 0 +3 8
i S LR 27 +3 0 +3 30
Aig PROMESSA PROMESSA 4 0 0 0 4
Sub-total: /)\st : 31 +3 0 +3 34
Total: 43t : 872 +155 -50 +105 977/
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Store Network (continued)

Chow Sang Sang / ZfE/Z

o During the year, out of the 94 newly opened Chow Sang Sang
stores in Mainland China, 72 of which were located in shopping
malls. We aimed to expand store sales and increase market share
by adding PROMESSA and/or culture-themed design sales space in

EEEAWMROM

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

and around high customer traffic Chow Sang Sang stores.

o 4 A e JE F (Oasis by Chow Sang Sang) continues to be an
important part of the expansion of our store network in Mainland
China. The total number of stores increased from 55 at the end of

2021 to 69 at the end of 2022.

o In Hong Kong, we added 2 new stores in Tsim Sha Tsui and closed
the Chow Sang Sang store in Canton Road. One of the new stores
is in K11 MUSEA: V&A Chow Sang Sang which is our first store-
collaboration with Victoria and Albert Museum in London. The
other store, in Harbour City, has an eye-catching fitting out with

allusions to oceans.

. In Macau, we increased the number of B5#5 5, stores from 5 to
8 stores at the end of 2022. One of the new stores is the V&A

Chow Sang Sang jewellery concept store at The Londoner.

o In Taiwan, we added 3 Zif5 5, stores in Hsinchu, Kaohsiung and

Tainan as part of our retail network expansion programme.

PROMESSA

o PROMESSA stores strive to present customers with a personalised

and ceremonial shopping experience.

o The store network has been steadily expanded in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Taiwan. With net increase of 6 new stores in the
Mainland and one in Hong Kong, the total number of PROMESSA

stores reached 30 by the end of 2022.

MINTYGREEN

o MINTYGREEN is an affordable daily wear brand in the Mainland

that caters to the younger generation.

o In 2022, MINTYGREEN started to develop its own exclusive
products, and further integrated online and offline operations.

Store number increased by 16 to 50 in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Store Network (continued)

EMPHASIS
o EMPHASIS aims to give a new definition to daily-wear jewellery.

. By the end of 2022, there were 19 stores in Mainland China and 4
stores in Hong Kong.

MARCO BICEGO

o MARCO BICEGO is an ltalian jewellery brand featuring artisanal
craftsmanship and contemporary designs. Aside from offering
products of the brand at our Chow Sang Sang store, we maintain
a brand store in Beijing.

Rolex/Tudor

. During the year, we added 1 store in The Mixc, Shenzhen, and
closed 1 store in Tuen Mun, Hong Kong.

° By the end of 2022, we maintained 24 Rolex/Tudor stores in
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing

DIERE(E)

EMPHASIS
e EMPHASISE BT & HFME K
=

o 2NFR EHREAKEREED
ESRAI9RRAR »

MARCO BICEGO

e MARCO BICEGO B—{EIAfEEF T
BRERRGESARFENERFK
EME - BRTERMNAEE DGR
HZmENERIN - BPERF 1R
PRI E R

Eht HH

o FRHEBIRUAFRINERELE
A1RUREBLNDIE

o MNFEGHEMERRRERE
B 2ARE DL/ HRDIE

BELELRETE

On-line Sales RLEHE
2022 2021

On-line Sales EH5EDH HK$'M HK$'M Change

by Market %o?d:ﬁﬁ% HEET BEET &
Mainland China i BB 2,666 2,194 +22%
Hong Kong, Taiwan BB HE

and Others K EH A 228 130 +75%
o Despite a decline in physical store sales in Mainland China due to s BEPHEAKEEREHERERBY

the pandemic, online sales continued to grow at a fast pace and
accounted for approximately 19% of Mainland China sales (2021:
15%). We have applied ourselves assiduously to live streaming
using both home-grown and external talents in over 19,000 (2021:
7,900) hours of shows, achieving satisfactory results on the Douyin
platform and elsewhere.

o Online sales in Hong Kong and other regions maintained its
strong growth in 2022. Remarkable growth was recorded in Chow
Sang Sang official website and across all major Hong Kong and
international platforms. Our Hong Kong online shop now features
Tudor watches as well as gold bars.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing (continued)

Omni-Remote Sales

Omni-Remote Sales include sales generated from e-commerce
platforms, Star Concierge Service and other remote sales
concluded out of in-person branch environment or with remote
inventory. The percentage of sales in 2022 to total sales in
Mainland China slightly increased to 34% (2021: 33%).

Percentage of Omni-Remote Sales was stable. Online 7x24 sales
and in-store sales complemented one another especially during the
pandemic period.

Product and Marketing

On the product front, gold jewellery sales demonstrated great
resilience. Our "Culture Blessings” collection of gold ornaments
remained the preferred choice of customers. Our newly introduced
collections, “Mirror Gold” and “Diamond Symphony”, have been
well-received by customers. In terms of market, affordable luxury
daily wear jewellery in Mainland China still recorded a slight
increase in 2022.

In 2022, the pandemic particularly affected high unit price gem-
set jewellery. While the Personalised Jewellery Service relied more
on larger-carat diamond sales, total sales were down 23% vyear-
on-year. Sales from this service accounted for 30% (2021: 37%)
of our diamond jewellery sales. However, with the increasing
popularity of online channels, 2022 online Personalised Jewellery
Service sales in Mainland China and Hong Kong increased by
101% and 32% respectively year-on-year.

The covid-19 epidemic situation remained volatile throughout
2022. It was not conducive to physical marketing campaigns,
but we still managed to launch a number of eye-catching events
timely, including the “Infini Love Diamond Kaleidoscope Tunnel
Exhibition”, "PROMESSA Interactive Roadshow”, culture-themed
gold jewellery exhibition and new product salon, etc. The Group
participated in a total of 12 (2021: 27) wedding expos in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Taiwan in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Wholesale of Precious Metals

EemitH

The pandemic and ongoing cross-border restrictions brought precious
metal trading and sourcing activities to a halt. Turnover in 2022
decreased by 62% year-on-year to HK$766 million.

E-commerce Platform

BIHETA

We operate an e-commerce platform for the sale of jewellery that are
set with laboratory-grown diamond under the business name “The
Future Rocks”. In 2022, The Future Rocks continued to add laboratory-
grown diamond jewellery brands worldwide to its platform. The Future
Rocks also launched on China online platforms TMall International,
Xiaohongshu and WeChat mini programme in May, followed by Douyin
in June. Media events and collaborations with KOLs have also been held
in Mainland China, Japan and France.

EEENMRDN

RIEMFENERERHSIBECENES
MEBEDEEAGRE - 2022 F 2 XERF
THK62% E766 BEETT ©

H LA The Future Rocks] AELLTEE
BREEENHREENEFAHETES  The
Future RocksR2022 F 4 & 5| At R &
M H) S B AR R R MR © The Future
Rocks M5 AEFRBIMGR EFAaRME
B NIERMBE N EFRRELEE
BEEROAERSHRARTHLEHEE I
ERBEARE - BA  EEBTTHETH
R EAEZ AT (KOL) B 1E ©

Securities and Futures Broking - the Discontinued Operation
EBERPERL - RUEREXEY

The Securities and Futures Broking business has since early May 2021
ceased operation. We have been processing unclaimed assets. Under
the Order of the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong
("High Court”) dated 29 March 2022, some of the unclaimed assets
were paid into court on 15 July 2022. Other unclaimed assets belonging
to several deceased customers will be released to the estates or paid
into court, pending the outcome of the relevant grant applications.
Complete shutdown will occur when all such assets are returned or
placed into court custody.

Since the commencement of legal actions against the customers
who defaulted on the repayment of margin loans, the payment of
commission fees and margin facility interests, and their respective
guarantors in the High Court in February 2021, the Group has obtained
judgments in certain actions and is now in the process of enforcing the
judgments and petitioning bankruptcy of certain individuals based on
the relevant judgment debts as appropriate.

Provisions for impairment losses on margin loans totalling HK$31 million
and HK$93 million were made for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, respectively. Provisions were made with reference to the
aggregate market value of the underlying collaterals at closing market
prices quoted on the Stock Exchange as at the respective financial year
end dates. As at 31 December 2022, total loans due from the customers
in default, net of total credit loss allowance, amounted to HK$124
million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investments

Investment Properties

The Group holds various properties with a total carrying value of
HK$508 million for rental purpose as at 31 December 2022. Rental
income for 2022 from investment properties amounted to HK$12
million.

Shares in HKEC

The Group's investment in 3,326,800 shares or 0.26% of HKEC is of
strategic nature and is the remaining part of the distribution received
from the reorganisation of the then exchanges in the year 2000. Such
investment was carried at fair value of HK$1,122 million as at 31
December 2022, representing 6% of the Group's total assets. During the
year, the Group received dividends in the amount of HK$25 million and
recorded a loss of HK$393 million recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of fair value change of the Group’s financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Capital Expenditure

The Group incurred capital expenditure of HK$395 million of which
HK$314 million was spent on new openings and refitting of stores.

Finance

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group generates strong recurring cashflow from its retailing
business and continues to enjoy a solid cash position. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$749
million (2021: HK$672 million). Cash is mostly held in Renminbi or Hong
Kong dollar and deposited in leading banks with maturity dates falling
within one year.

The Group was well supported by over HK$8,772 million in banking
facilities including bank borrowings and bullion loans, out of which
HK$1,096 million are committed facilities. As at 31 December 2022, the
total unutilised banking facilities amounted to HK$3,879 million (2021:
HK$3,038 million).

As at 31 December 2022, total bank borrowings and bullion loans
amounted to HK$1,567 million and HK$3,073 million respectively, which
were unsecured in accordance with the Group’s policy. The weighted
average tenure of bank borrowings is around three years. The gearing
ratio was 39%, based on total bank borrowings and bullion loans of
HK$4,640 million as a percentage of equity attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$11,891 million. The current ratio of the Group was
2.7.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance (continued)

Financial Position and Liquidity (continued)

The Group manages risk of credit cost and availability by several
means: cultivating relationship with a large number of lending banks;
diversifying the funding sources by engaging a number of local
and overseas banks; putting some loans on a term basis; and fixing
interest costs on loans as appropriate. The Group had 25% of its bank
borrowings at fixed rates as at 31 December 2022, increased from 23%
as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, outstanding derivatives on the books were
mainly bullion contracts for hedging the bullion price exposure.
Management monitors the hedging policy closely and the hedging level
of the Group is approximately 40% of the total gold inventories.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses are mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US dollar. As such,
the risk is easily manageable and slight. Simultaneously, the Group
maintains an appropriate level of foreign currency borrowings for natural
hedge, foreign currency forward contracts and cross currency swaps,
to mitigate foreign exchange exposure. As at 31 December 2022, the
bank borrowings denominated in US dollar, Renminbi and New Taiwan
dollar amounted to US$9 million, RMB60 million and NT$175 million
respectively.

Charge on Assets, Lease Liabilities and Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was no asset pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had lease liabilities of HK$983
million (2021: HK$907 million) and had no material contingent liabilities.

Human Resources

The Group maintains its long-established performance-based
remuneration policies with a discretionary annual performance bonus.
Training has been provided to new and existing staff at a pace
commensurate with the expansion of the networks in all territories.

A share option scheme is in place to provide incentives or rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group and enabling the
Group to attract and retain valuable employees. Details of the scheme
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEEESEERARRDA

19

EEEAWMROM

% (&)

BEBERERFEES ()
AEBUZRBAREEEERARR &
AREE: BEREHBENRITHEIBTRI
KRR - MERAHREINEITRER
BUNRESRE BB/ EEEARE
ERREBLAEEFNEL T - R2022F
12A318  AKEMETERFTE25%
AEBEE 2021512 A31H123%
BE e

M20226 128318 EELEATFAEZLT
ETEFTEARAEYTESCBERARD
EeBAY - BIEEBRY)EEE R -

BREAEEMNE K FEFNAESETER
40% -
NEREGEEE

AEBECZEERAERE  WARTHEAHRS
BT ARBRETE HEERRE
APERERAR - A AEESHBEEE
IKERIINEEBRIER ARG - BEINES
NRZXEEBBE S UREINE R
B o M2022F 128318 7 AR
R AEMRTERDAIEESRT
AREOBBTMITSABHAK -

BEHAF HEEEREAERE
M2022F & 2021F 12318 KA &
TEEREE  UWEARRRETHE
BIMBEERITEE -

> B

M2022%F 128318 ANEB HEEE
B983EE B TL(2021F - 007 HEETT)
RWESASRERE -

AHER

AEBERFETZEARKRBEREENF
MR TREMBENFREERS - [
MABRRER TREREI  NEAAE
E&D EREBEROSK -

AEBERE -—EHBERENERNAEREH
ARBEESHASEEL TG TRE %S
B UREAEEERITHEAEER
MEE - ZiTEIFBHRGA M B RERM
36

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022 4 3R



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Human Resources (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of employees of the Group
was 11,673, of whom 9,989 in Mainland China, 1,456 in Hong Kong
and Macau, and 228 in Taiwan. During the year ended 31 December
2022, total staff costs amounted to HK$1,935 million.

Outlook

As of the first quarter of 2023 the worst of the covid-19 impact looks
to be behind us. This puts our jewellery and watch retail on a strong
recovery footing. Sales in Hong Kong and Macau, and Mainland China
for the period from 1 January to 15 March 2023 were up approximately
89% and 26% year-on-year respectively.

We remain committed to our long-established business strategy, which
includes (1) steady expansion of jewellery and watch store network; (2)
Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing; and (3) continuous product
innovation and robust customer communication.

We continue to steadily expand the number of our jewellery and watch
stores, utilising multi-brand strategy and different decorating styles to
enhance shopping experience and strengthen brand positioning. We
expect the number of net store additions for the Group will be around
100 in 2023. Within the Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing
ecosystem, customers enjoy all-round jewellery shopping “anytime”,
“anywhere” and “at any time"”. Greater emphasis is put on developing
live-streaming marketing and sales platforms, and realising new retail
strategy and online and offline marketing through short videos and
new media channels. We are making use of advanced technology to
optimise demand forecast, logistics and distributions as well as customer
relationship management. We leverage design digitalisation and further
production automation to build a more agile and customer-focused
supply chain.

Grave geopolitical tensions and worrisome economic indicators
notwithstanding, we have faith in riding on the growth trends with
our compact but effective self-owned retail network, our disciplined
inventory mechanisms and our commitment to digitisation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are active in the field of the manufacture and retail of
jewellery, distribution of watches, the wholesale of precious metals
and e-commerce platform operation. Details of the principal activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 79 to 198.

An interim dividend of HK15.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 23
September 2022. The Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK15.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 8 June 2023.

Business Review

A fair review and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided in
the Chairman’s Message on page 3 and the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 9 to 20 of this annual report. Details of the significant
event of the Group after reporting period are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements. Certain financial key performance
indicators are provided in the Financial Highlights on page 2.

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers as well as the principal risks and uncertainties
of the Group are shown in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
56 to 70.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations are

included in the ESG Report on pages 31 to 55.

The above review constitutes part of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

LERBER

TXEIASRBBEREMBRFELER
hEE BE AENMERESZHER
(RSB EERGAM BRI REES
REHNE) - WHBY TEREELESR
IigERER 2 — 87 -

Results E7
Year ended 31 December
BZNA3MALEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT TET TAR TET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELSEEY
Turnover EER
Retail TE 19,751,940 19,921,938 13,097,720 16,258,416 17,130,414
Other businesses eSS 804,576 2,065,621 1,899,821 1,453,697 1,641,415
20,556,516 21,987,559 14,997,541 17,712,113 18,771,829
Operating profit gyl 592,764 1,005,711 943,749 1,312,255 1,276,594
Share of profits of RERBE R
associates, net wHRE - - - _ 245
Profit before tax Iyl 592,764 1,005,711 943,749 1,312,255 1,276,839
Income tax ity (117,003) (265,331) (304,611) (312,564) (304,907)
Profit for the year SELEEKL
from continuing ERREH
operations 475,761 740,380 639,138 999,691 971,932
DISCONTINUED OPERATION KPR
Profit/(loss) for the year from RIEREEB R
discontinued operation WA/ (EE) (34,039) (100,611) (94,674) (356,158) 40,325
Profit for the year EREF 441,722 639,769 544,464 643,533 1,012,257
Profit/(loss) for the year EEERER/ (BB) -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARAEBA 452,326 643,257 544,464 643,533 1,012,257
Non-controlling interests IR (10,604) (3,488) - - -
441,722 639,769 544,464 643,533 1,012,257
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Five-year Financial Summary (continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling interests

IEMBERE(E)
BE RERIEREZ

As at 31 December

R12A318

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TAT FET TET AT

Total assets BEE 18,650,857 18,088,758 16,826,467 16,236,438 13,838,036
Total liabilities BaRE (6,780,629)  (5.345,297)  (4,807,353)  (5,604,053)  (3,419,099)
Non-controlling interests Fludiiy ey 20,315 9,659 - - -
11,890,543 12,753,120 12,019,114 10,632,385 10,418,937

Charitable Contributions BEBRR
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling FAREE 2 BEHBH 375,000 7T °

HK$375,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group’s properties are set out on pages 199 to 202 of this
annual report.

Share Capital

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the year.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

Share Option Scheme

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 11 June
2020 (“Share Option Scheme”) is set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements. No share option was granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Emolument Policy

The long-established performance-based emolument policy for
the employees of the Group operates on the basis of rewarding
performance, with appropriate consideration on experience and
prevailing industry practices.

The Company determines the emoluments of the Directors on the
basis of the comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities,
employment conditions, the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees of the Group are set out in notes 9 and 11 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out the guideline on declaring and recommending the
payment of dividends.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into account,
inter alia, the following factors:

o financial results;

o cash flow situation;

. business conditions and strategies;

o future operations and earnings;

o capital requirements and expenditure plans;

o interests of shareholders;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

o any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Company intends to distribute between 30% to 40% of the
Group's annual consolidated net profits as dividends to its shareholders.
The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to
time.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, amounted to HK$1,382,639,000 of which
HK$101,615,000 has been proposed as final dividend for the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 75% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 45%.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun

Mr. LEE Ka Lun

Dr. LO King Man

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung

Each of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, Mr. LEE Ka Lun and Dr. LO King
Man shall retire by rotation as Directors at the 2023 annual general
meeting (the “2023 AGM") pursuant to bye-law 99(B) of the Company's
bye-laws. All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the 2023 AGM.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management up to the
date of this report are set out on pages 4 to 8 of this annual report.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

Save as detailed in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or his connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of
the year.

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during
the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company's bye-laws and subject to the provisions of the
statutes, every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022 which is still in force.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors in the issued
share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

Long positions:

EEnkOzER

R2022F 128318 SEFRARAI
HigHzB(TE A(BHFRBER)E
XVEB)EBTRAS  (BHLBEK
)8 352 AR RIA T IRTF 2 B RETEE
8 IBRBEETRINAERARE RBER
FTEm EEMT

#

iny

Number of shares held

BRYE

Approximate
Personal Family ~ Corporate Trustee percentage of
interest interest interest interest Total  shareholding
RRERS
Name of Directors Esps BAER FEER AAER  ERAER ait Rl
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing B2k 54 - - - 136,271,595 136,271,595 20.12
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing RAHRBE 960,000 70,3987 74,995,996” - 76,026,394 11.22
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing A %4 28,681,104 52,8007 14,244316”  32,616,000% 75,594,220 11.16
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RRBEE 1,320,000 - - - 1,320,000 0.19

Note: Wiz

M Pplease refer to the notes in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’

and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS BEEERE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares FTERRREMAITRBROREBERAEZ
and Underlying Shares R

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of those persons in the issued N2022F 128310 BIKEARAE
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of interests GEBINE 3361 - ARABTRELEES
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO MacsEANEERRBCBITRAAL 24

were as follows: Fas (BN
Long positions: #E
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shareholding
£ &% ER¥E Bkl
Everwin Company Limited Beneficial Owner 120,000,000" 17.71
EERAA
Speed Star Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner and Interest of
Controlled Corporation 74,995,996% 11.07
EalE ARREHIRA 2 #R
Schroders plc Investment Manager 54,021,447% 7.97
REEBA
Happy Family Limited Beneficial Owner 53,909,932% 7.96
RERERR DA EnFFAA
Pandanus Associates Inc. Interest of Controlled Corporation 34,009,000 5.02
REHAR] R
Pandanus Partners L.P. Interest of Controlled Corporation 34,009,000 5.02
REHAR] R
FIL Limited Interest of Controlled Corporation 34,009,000 5.02

RSN R 2
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

M

136,271,595 shares in the Company were held by a discretionary trust of
which Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was the beneficiary. The trustee
of the trust was Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited, which held the
interests in the Company through the following companies:

Name of companies
RE] 5

Everwin Company Limited
Golden Court Limited

Accordingly, Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited was deemed to have
interests in the 136,271,595 shares. Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was
deemed to have interests in the 136,271,595 shares in the Company.

70,398 shares and 52,800 shares in the Company were held by the
respective spouse of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing.

60,751,680 shares in the Company were held by Speed Star Holdings
Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
and his spouse.

14,244,316 shares in the Company were held by Eimoling Company
Limited, in which Speed Star Holdings Limited and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing owned 44.5% of the equity interest respectively.

32,616,000 shares in the Company were held by CWS Holdings Limited,
a company beneficially owned by a discretionary trust of which
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing was the founder and one of the
beneficiaries. The trustee of the trust was UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd. and,
accordingly, it was deemed to have interests in the 32,616,000 shares in
the Company.

Accordingly, Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and his spouse were deemed
to have interests in the 75,066,394 shares and 75,955,996 shares in the
Company respectively. Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and his spouse were
deemed to have interests in the 46,913,116 shares and 75,541,420 shares
in the Company respectively.

Schroders plc through its subsidiaries, namely Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, Schroder Investment Management
Limited, Schroder Investment Management North America Limited,
Schroder Investment Management (Singapore) Ltd. and Schroder &
Co. Limited, held 28,158,447 shares, 155,000 shares, 42,000 shares,
25,447,000 shares and 219,000 shares in the Company respectively, and
was accordingly deemed to be interested in the respective shares held by
the aforesaid companies.

53,909,932 shares in the Company were held by Happy Family Limited, in
which the late Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling had a 20% equity interest.
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TEREREMATARGREERD Z
Rz ()
Wit -
(1) —THAZREETHELRRA 136,271,595 K
B AXKAEABZETLZIRA M

Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited
REZGETZIETA  HBERTIARES

/NG 5
No. of shares held
FHREA
120,000,000
16,271,595

Iit,  Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman)
Limited#% 18 /& % £ 136,271,595 & &
Mgz FXRKEEWE RBEERRA
136,271,595 [ {7 #E 25

Q2 RPuXBEREAKLESEZEEDR
BAARRE 70,398 8% M 52,800 fx k(s °

Speed Star Holdings Limited #7871
60,751,680 (MR 10 + 22 7] f AR B &
RERBERES -

Eimoling Company Limited$5 58 A& 2 7]
14,244,316 &% {7 * Speed Star Holdings
Limited R AR EED R EAZ D A
44.5% 2 [N RS ©

CWS Holdings Limited# & & 2 &
32,616,000 % f&fn * Z AR —BEEE
ERERER  AAKAERZETIR
TAREFR—HZamA o UBS TC (Jersey)
Ltd. BEZEFE2EEA  AWRAES
ANA 732,616,000 AP 7 #E A o

A AR EERERBDAEEA
A RN 7) 75,066,394 1% K 75,955,996
Bl hERZ  AAKEERERBS
AR AR A D E46,913,116 % K
75,541,420 & IR (R i 5 o

(3)  Schroders plciE i@ H [ff B 2 & Schroder
Investment Management (Hong Kong)
Limited ~Schroder Investment Management
Limited ~Schroder Investment Management
North America Limited ~ Schroder
Investment Management (Singapore) Ltd.
% Schroder & Co. Limited 2 Bl A AR E]
28,158,447 1% ~ 155,000 f% + 42,000 f% -
25,447,000 % % 219,000 A% A £ - FH L4
BRER FRRRSERA R -

4 MELREEBBRL2AFLAELRDQF
53,909,932k fh - MEMAE S KL
BHEE20% IRAER o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(5)  Pandanus Partners L.P. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pandanus
Associates Inc., and Pandanus Partners L.P. holds 38.71% shareholding
of FIL Limited. Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus Partners L.P. and FIL
Limited are therefore deemed to be interested in the 34,009,000 shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other
than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section headed
"Directors’ Interests in Shares” above, had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year and
up to the date of this report.

Events after the Reporting Period

Save as disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements,
there were no other significant events occurred after the reporting
period and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire, and being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the 2023 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 March 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group complies with the HKEx ESG Guide. The primary purpose
of this report is to disclose the Group’s current management approach
and performance in social and environmental responsibility as well as its
vision for sustainable development strategies.

This report covers our performance for the year ended 31 December
2022. Unless specified otherwise, all policies and management systems
described in this report refer to our manufacturing and retailing of
jewellery and distribution of watches in Greater China. ESG performance
indicators presented in this report cover main operations in Hong Kong
and Mainland China unless stated otherwise. Revenue contribution
and the associated ESG impacts are the primary factors in defining the
reporting boundary. The operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China
contributed to the majority of our total revenue. As our operations have
continued to expand, the number of retail stores included in this report
has also increased.

In preparing this report, the Group has fully considered the four
Reporting Principles in the HKEx ESG Guide, namely materiality,
quantitative, consistency and balance. This report prioritises and details
the issues deemed important from the perspectives of our stakeholders
and business. In addition to policy and programme descriptions, we
also provide performance data of the current and previous years
and corresponding narratives to reflect our ESG management more
comprehensively. Unless otherwise specified, we adopt the same
methodologies to derive the disclosed data.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESBEERAERARA

31

AEBETEIMBE HERERE
5l - AREEERBEAEEEH G NRER
EETENBRTERNHLERE  ARY
AREERRBORESR -

ARELHAANEBEZ2022F12 A31H
IHFERRR - BRBEIEBEN - RRERT
M AERR R EE#R G EAEBNKH
EENGKBERERTEMERIHEEH -
BREBHBEI  AREMERAIRE - 4L
SREARBEZHENEBRPBE AR
MEZER - WEERRBEBZERE
EREAVEARTREHENTER
Zo BERPBEAEMNERGRMEKE
AR - EEXEBHEER - ABREM
BENTEEEE MEREM -

AEBEERUEABRERERD ERBR
R HERERESIMNEERRA
NERE Bt —BUERTFE - XRE
R EREBN ARG K RIE N
RREBZEH - BHRKG & it
oh BT AFE RBEORAUIE
FAEER - UE2EMRRAEBER
5oHERERTANERE - BRERH
o RIRA AR A AEGFAREN
g -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022 F iR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Statement

The Board oversees the Group's ESG strategy, material ESG-related risks
including climate-related risks and the effectiveness of our ESG risk
management and internal control systems. The Board is also responsible
for overseeing the establishment of environmental targets and the
associated reporting disclosures, while our management is responsible
for implementing ESG management and objectives.

By taking part in stakeholder engagement and endorsing materiality
analysis, the Board provides oversight of the evaluation and prioritisation
of ESG-related issues. The Group's risk management framework and
ESG-related risks, such as climate-related risks, are under the Board’s
supervision. The Board is committed to taking actions to identify,
mitigate and adapt to the ESG-related risks of our company.

The Group has established an ESG Working Group to raise the
environmental protection, social responsibility and corporate governance
awareness of our employees and drive group-wide contribution to
environmental protection. The Board has assigned the ESG Working
Group, which reports to the Board, to be in charge of monitoring
important ESG trends, targets, and associated risks and opportunities,
as well as assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's ESG-
related implementations and reviewing ESG policies when necessary. The
Group has also established an Environmental Sustainability Department
to support the formulation and implementation of the Group's
carbon neutral and sustainable environmental development strategy.
The Environmental Sustainability Department also coordinates and
cooperates with external agencies on carbon neutrality related projects,
and reports to the Chief Scientific and Sustainability Officer, a member
of the ESG Working Group.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AAEEEEBEBEAERRFA

32

EsgEH

EZQERAKENERE HERERS
B - BARS - e REARBRR(BRE
RIRERARR)  UWRERER  HEREAM
BREERAREERAGNENE -EFE
TRBEERREAZNGIERARERE R
BOmMEEBRIAEERERE HEME
REENARE -

BRARRFNE2ENETERENN
EXCEERE HekELRAEREN
AHE RBIERF o AR E R EIEER
FRE - e RERHERERR(NRIZERE
ERIXESEEE - ETQUNRATH
Bhl o BEREHARANERE HER
ERHEERER -

AREBKYTRR  HEREATIENE
NRRREEHRERE HEEEIREE
BRMER THBRESBEURERE
WER - EFEGCHIKRMEREHRE
HEREATFENEAEREEENR
5o#HeRkERBY - BRRARERN
BE - ARFHARERRE HEhE
REBEERNRDEMBRIE  TEL
ERRARE HERELBRK - ~5E
ML AFERRERE U HAEE
PR A REREERRBEOBELE
i o AIFFEIRIR R A AL AR R AR B R
B ESMPEBE T R A - LR
FARBERE(BRE HERERIE
INERKE )RR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022 F %



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT RIE HERERKRSE

Risk Management LB B 1R
A robust risk management approach is essential for the Group to REMEREEAZEAEERIRE 1
minimise ESG-related risks. Relevant policies and procedures are ehEREHRRERERELHEE - 17

implemented for managing ESG-related risks of the Group. We have BHRRENMEFCEMRNEBAREBIRE
clearly delegated role and responsibility to all relevant parties as e hEREERR - TR - B

presented in the table below. ERBEREARARZRTHABREBESA -
Role Responsibility
B BfiE
The Board - Oversee ESG-related risk management
EES EERE HekEnBBRRER

- Review the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems by
which ESG-related risks are monitored and mitigated
RECERNEREERABEZRGENEZELRERE e LERERER
oy idia

- Oversee the establishment of environmental targets and the associated reporting
disclosures
EEHTREAGRIEERERE

Audit Committee - Oversee ESG-related risk management procedures
ENLZEE® EERE  dekErnBERRERREF

- Review the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems

e L B TR e PO RBAR 6 R AR A R

Senior Management - Identify, analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risk, including ESG-
BREEE related risks associated with any activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority
Bl A BTG BY  BEREREERR BREASERERSEANIME

B BRI ABNERE e kEnElER
- Develop action plans to address potential ESG-related risks and contingency plans
for possible loss scenarios

REHEERE e RERRBRRKAELRBRNERDHFETHIRR

SRR
Internal Audit - Conduct review of different aspects of the operations, including ESG-related issues
N EBE % HEENTREBETR - BRERR HekEAEEEE

- Report findings to Audit Committee
MEZZEGREASHER

Risk assessment is carried out with ESG issues taken into consideration. ETEBIEREZERE  HERER
ESG-related risks involving loss will be investigated and properly EH - SREANRR HEREREH
documented as part of the effort to manage risks. REREEERAASTELZSEH - ER

Rk EE TEN—#D -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Analysis

BROENSERBERUDN

To understand our stakeholders’ perspectives and expectations on the
Group's ESG issues, the Group has maintained close communication
with internal and external stakeholders comprising employees,
customers, shareholders and investors, suppliers, community and
charitable organisations. There are various channels of communication
with these stakeholders including company website, meetings, online
communications, questionnaires, interviews, and on-site research and
investigation. The Group reviews the feedback from stakeholders
periodically to evaluate the materiality of the ESG topics in an ongoing
manner.

During the year, we made reference to the result of an independent
stakeholder engagement exercise conducted and the latest requirements
from the HKEx ESG Guide, combining with the results of latest industry
development trend captured by a peer benchmarking exercise for
deriving a materiality assessment matrix shown as below.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HEOGENEENY

Importance to Stakeholder

While we are striving for an overall balance in the disclosure of the
Group's ESG initiatives and performance, emphasis will be placed on

5.2

4.7

4.2

3.7

3.2

Service and product quality

R RERER

Occupational safety and health
BEz2MREE

Employee development and training
I8 & %R M5

Anti-corruption

RES

Customer privacy protection
EFLERE

Intellectual property rights

A ERE

Energy management

RRER

Employee remuneration

Diversity and equal opportunities
SR TFERS

Service and
) product quality
tlo::lltshafety BERERES

R e R Employee development
and training

ERERE KA

4.5 5 5.5
Importance to Business
HEBNEEM
Topics
L

10 Supply chain management
HEsE e

» Child and forced labour
BEIR®HSET

12 Responsible marketing
BEEEH

13 Packaging materials consumption
BEMHEER

14 Non-hazardous and hazardous waste management
BEENRERERNER
Water management

5 kapEm
Air emissions management

16 masmEse

17 Contribution to community development
HHEERNAR

18 Climate change management
RIRE (L EE

19 Wastewater management
FEKERE

issues which are considered more material to our business.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to ensuring that its products are of premium
quality, obtained through verified and ethical sources and that processes
are well controlled to prevent the occurrences of corrupt practice. We
were not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group, concerning
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress during the year.

Product Responsibility and Service Quality

The Group has systems in place to ensure that all products marketed are
monitored for (a) the fineness and veracity of materials; (b) the presence
of toxic elements as prescribed by national standards that we operate
in; and (c) conformance with our defined levels of workmanship.

Management protocols in place define the testing methods and
sampling procedures for different products and materials. Tests using
both surface spectrometric and destructive methods are done by
the Group's externally-accredited laboratories located in Hong Kong
and Shunde. Among them, Hong Kong Gemological Research and
Authentication Centre Company Limited, our wholly owned subsidiary,
was accredited as a “Designated Local Research Institution” in the
qualified R&D activities launched by the Hong Kong Innovation and
Technology Commission. Besides, workmanship inspection is conducted
at several stages on all products along the supply chain. All our products
are required to undergo quality assessment according to China national
standards such as GB/T 16554 at National Gemstone Testing Center for
high quality assurance. With the stringent quality assurance process,
there were no records of products sold or shipped subject to recall for
safety and health reasons during the year (2021: Nil).

In case of defective or unqualified products identified, the Group
will evaluate the associated risks and scope of the issue and initiate
appropriate recall procedures. When potential safety and health risks are
observed, the Group would promptly notify the relevant parties. Once
the affected products are identified, we will develop an action plan
and a timeframe for recalling the distributed products. We will further
request to submit a final incident report that analyses the reasons for
recall with necessary corrective measures to prevent future recurrence.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT BE HERERRE

Operating Practices (continued) EETRI(E)

Product Responsibility and Service Quality (continued) EREXRBEEE(E)

Management has established policies to ensure that the advertising and EEEHFTBRRNBRERES MEET
labelling of our products are in line with applicable laws and regulations. BEAEERERN - 1o AFEKREE

Moreover, in conformance with the Group’s Code of Conduct, H1{TASE EEELEAHERENER
management has systems in place to ensure that intellectual property ARPAEELEMETHABERSE
rights, both our own and of other parties, are observed and respected in BIMEBEE . AEEARA REMKRAE
our business dealings. The Group protects its own intellectual property EANEIRIEREEMARERENH#E
rights by undertaking relevant registration in Hong Kong and overseas HE o

for its own created brands and designs.

Should there be any enquiries or complaints, the Group has a dedicated WU R M E R eF - AEERAEMN
team of customer relations personnel for quick response. Customers can HNEFEBEEAEBN - o AR {EH L JE -

reach the team via various channels, including: REAEAZEREMRSE B

e service hotlines; o IRFGEGE

e LIVE CHAT; and o ERRE: K

e social media platforms including Facebook, Weibo, WeChat and o HREET A(EFEFacebook *
Instagram. 18« #{= & Instagram) °

In addition, all store staff are trained to handle queries on products, WoN TAES RELHESEBEHE

maintenance and repair. All customer correspondence through the m RERGEERENE) - IEREA

proper channels is logged and documented. In 2022, 38 product-and AEHERBESERENGRIEFE -

service-related complaints were received as compared to 75 in 2021. 202F B ESTEERREREE
MR - 2021 FRIFT5R -

’//// N .
Recognitions on Quality Services - awarded by ﬁ
Hong Kong Retail Management Association ey

ERBERBNRY - HEESEEEHEREE TLI=

2022 Quality Service Retailer of the Year of Retail Excellence Award (Gold)
Chain Stores - Silver Award | BERBRBRE (£58)

2022 REBBRETEAE—EHE - R

[

2022 Top 10 020 Retail Brand j" Outstanding Flagship Service Brand

2022 T K020 TERE | BEEEERB R /

In recent years, the Group has been implementing an effective online- RER AEE-BERTERNELET
to-offline (“020") strategy to provide a more multifaceted and BE([020))%EE - AERREEZ LI
seamless shopping experience for customers. The Group had been REGEENER  AEE-—BEBNIRSE
working on improving its information technology infrastructure to HEARSERES  UBERERBAR -
scale development. The Group was awarded Digital Transformation of AEER2022FBFEMEZTEES FREF
the Year at Alibaba Cloud Summit Hong Kong 2022, The Pioneer of BHTERE - N 2022 F2KEEAIH
Digital Intelligence Enterprise award at 2022 Global Business Innovation ARELREEECERBE  URCSE
Conference, and 2022 Digital Innovation Leadership Award at the 11th +— R CIE G L’ 2022 BT LRIFTSIE
China Finance Summit. 5o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility and Service Quality (continued)

The Group won two awards (Best Retail Innovation Grand Award -
Use of Technology, and Best Retail Innovation Grand Award — Market
Potential & Performance) in Hong Kong Retail Innovation Award 2022
organised by the Hong Kong Retail Technology Industry Association.
One of the awards was in recognition of Chow Sang Sang’s innovative
technology application and unique customer experience at the "V&A
Museum in conjunction with Chow Sang Sang Concept Store” at K11
MUSEA, Hong Kong.

Customer Data Protection

The Group maintains a customer database. We have policies and
procedures in place to ensure compliance with the relevant local laws
and regulations, General Data Protection Regulation of the European
Union and Personal Information Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, which govern the collection, use, retention and protection
of the customers’ personal data. We collect and maintain only the
minimum personal data of our customers in our database. The database
is well protected both in policy and technological terms. Customer data
are released strictly on a need-to-know basis and will not be released
to external parties or even to units within the Group that are not the
original data collectors without prior consent. Relevant details of our
Privacy Policy are available on our company website.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has comprehensive procurement and supply chain
management policies which are benchmarked against the best industry
practice principles. During the supplier selection process, the Group
conducts background checks and gives preference to suppliers currently
working towards responsible and sustainable operation. Besides, we
not only consider the infrastructure, production capacity and market
reputation of the potential suppliers, but also their commitment to
comply with legal, ethical and social aspects.

Diamond suppliers are required to provide documented proof of the
ethical provenance of their raw materials. All materials and finished
goods are monitored as stated under the paragraph “Product
Responsibility and Service Quality” and only those that passed the
tests are accepted. Through prioritising suppliers with demonstrated
management and high performance on ESG aspects, relevant social
and environmental risks arisen from the supply chain are mitigated and
managed. All new suppliers are required to complete a checklist with
ESG associated elements for understanding their environmental and
social risks performance and they will be randomly assessed annually.
We strive to work out a solution with suppliers once substandard goods
and materials are identified. These suppliers are subject to a system
of warnings, temporary or even permanent blocking of orders if no
improvements have been made thereafter.
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Operating Practices (continued)

Supply Chain Management (continued)

Where possible, the Group maintains relationships with multiple
suppliers to prevent the risks inherent in over-reliance on suppliers.
The Group also supports fair competition when selecting potential
suppliers by observing relevant laws and regulations. This commitment
is communicated with the procurement staff in the procurement and
supply chain management policies.

ZETR(E)

REREE (&)
ERATHRR T AREES EHREDE
BRERHER  UMELBEEREZR
b - ARBEEEREEETHBAER
RO A RFHTF o thkaa ARE
FHEREERREERRBEERE -

No. of Suppliers by Geographical Region
RiES D HNHERHE

fB

7
2022 2021

Anti-corruption

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations, our employees are
required to comply with the rules stipulated in our Employee Handbook
and Anti-Corruption Policy, which provide definitions of permissible and
impermissible giving and receiving of advantages and gifts. Employees
are required to report receipts and subsequent disposal of gifts. Our
employees are also required to follow the Group's Code of Conduct,
which defines appropriate methods in handling conflict of interests.
Additionally, the Group has implemented the Prevention of Money
Laundering Policy, which spells out the principles, work and reporting
mechanism relating to criminal activities.

The management has arranged online trainings for employees on their
expected conduct upon the identification of potential incidents of
corruption or bribery within the workplace. Relevant anti-corruption
trainings are provided and directors and all staff are informed
periodically of the latest requirement regarding anti-corruption practices.
Under the whistleblowing policy, employees are protected if they submit
signed reports on suspicious activities. During the year, there were
no reported cases of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering (2021: Nil).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices

Training and development programmes, employee welfare and relationship

B dHERERHE
ERREIER
BIlkER;E BERMMEIRER

building initiatives have always been particularly important to our GREBHAEBEBLAEE - AEEE
business. The Group proactively adopts best practices in human resource BERAANNBERERNZEEE - DER
management to cope with the ever-changing business environment. REBENMERSE -
a . : w7
Recognitions on Employment Best Practices
ARERREERNREY
2022 Top Human Resources Management Award Jointly announced by Foshan Shunde District
awarded by 51job Federation of Trade Unions, Foshan Shunde
ERREEEE (2022 AHEREBETE] Federation of Industry and Commerce, Foshan
Shunde Civil Affairs and Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau as 2022 Shunde District “Advanced
Enterprise Caring for Employees”
HEELTEEEATE - RLUTIEERIEXEAE - |
HLTIEERRBMANERELERERMAENS |
2022 FEIERE [HEETRELR] )
Employment 4
The Group observes relevant employment laws and regulations. Being AEBETHBRERFEELEEIBEH - EAF

an equal opportunities employer, the Group and its management
embrace diversity in its workforce and ensure that the employees are
not discriminated against in recruitment and promotion because of their
ethnicity, age, gender, marital status, physical or mental health status,
family status, sexual orientation, religion or belief.

Complying with relevant laws and regulations, the Group strictly
prohibits child and forced labour in all business operations. In the
recruitment process, the Human Resources Department implements
appropriate procedures to ensure that all job applicants reach the
legal working age through checking their valid identification at the
recruitment stage to verify their age. Employment contracts are entered
on the principle of equality and voluntarism including the right to
terminate employment and the right to provide adequate protection
in respect of minimum wages, working hours and annual leave. Our
suppliers are also required to confirm that their employment does not
involve child and forced labour. In 2022, there was no identified case
regarding child and forced labour.

On the other hand, the Group requires employees to comply with its
Code of Conduct, which stipulates the Group’s value and expectations
on employees to uphold high standard of ethics and integrity. The
document/handbook containing the Code of Conduct is available on the
Group's intranet.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has employed a total of
11,673 employees, of which 11,319 employees work in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. The relevant total number of employees by
geographical region, employment category, gender and age group as at
31 December 2021 and 2022 are as follows:
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Breakdown of Employee Statistics

BTG

Total Workforce by Geographical Region

BH (% &) 77 1 8 B 4B 2L

Mainland China
NG

9,989
9,382

1,330

1,303
Hong Kong

Eit

Total Workforce by Employment Category
R IEIF A5 &) 77 i 1E 5 4B 2L

General Staff 7,080
—KRET
Middle Management 3.016
TEEEAR
some
Upper Management 589
SEERAR
W 2022
Employee Turnover Rate
by Gender
L FIE| 7 aE 8 w56 F
% 37.9
347
30.4
27.0
Male Female <30
3

W 2022
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Employee Turnover Rate
by Age Group

BFGALFIE 7 1B R AR F

Total Workforce by Gender
"L FE) 7 0918 S 482

% 9,189
= 8,625

Female
&
(% 2,130
° 2,060
Male
B2

Total Workforce by Age Group
IRFBEAFIE 5 0 1E S 4820

A o
5P —
K

30-50
>50

2,668
2,830

8,280
7,520

[ 2021

Employee Turnover Rate by
Geographical Region

BABEAOEDTSEE

%
39.6
31.4
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Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employee Welfare

Beyond the requirements stipulated in the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group maintains an open and standardised framework
for employment, salary review and promotion. Apart from basic salary,
employees are rewarded with performance-based bonuses. Benefits such
as paid vacation leave and insurance are commensurate with, or better
than local practices and legal requirements. Relevant policies are fully
communicated through the Handbook for staff reference.

We enhance the overall communication across various departments and
ranks within the Group through the platform WeCom. WeCom allows
the employees to access the latest corporate and training information,
as well as personal exchanges more efficiently and conveniently.

The management level of the Group regularly reviews employees’ goal
alignment, job performance and working conditions to ensure that the
employees’ personal development and job performance improvement
are in alignment with business priorities. Grievance procedures are in
place for the protection of employees. Personal details of employees are
strictly protected.

Work Safety and Health

The Group adheres to the principle of “safety and prevention first”
to create an accident-free working environment for the employees.
As such, the Group has various committees established to ensure that
the employees have a safe and healthy working environment and to
further strengthen the implementation of relevant initiatives at divisional
level. Safety risks in various facilities have been identified, assessed and
managed with corresponding preventive measures. Committee meetings
are held to monitor our occupational health and safety performance
and regular safety inspections are conducted. Safety- and health-related
awareness building trainings are conducted for the benefit of all staff.

We complied with all the relevant laws and regulations related to
providing safe environment at all locations of operations and protecting
employees from potential occupational hazards. We had zero work-
related fatality in the last three years and 1,308 lost days due to work-
related injury in 2022 (2021: 1,362.5). Follow-up work had been carried
out immediately to reduce the likelihood of similar incidents in the
future.
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Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Work Safety and Health (continued)

In response to the ongoing outbreak of covid-19, we have continued to
implement flexible working hours and working from home arrangements
as well as several precautionary and safety measures to protect our
employees, including:

e setting up temperature checkpoints at store and office entrances;

o placing of disinfected carpets at office entrances;
o distributing alcohol wipes for sanitising office or store supplies;

o distributing surgical masks and gloves;

o staggering lunch hour to reduce physical contact; and

o enhancing usage of video conferencing system to minimise face-
to-face meetings.

Development and Training

To cope with the development of the Group’s omni-channel and multi-
brand strategy, the Group and its management oversee the design and
execution of various onboarding and on-the-job training programmes
for new and current employees, which cover topics such as product
knowledge, customer service, consultative selling skill, store marketing
and team management, property security and risk management, and
occupational safety. All these programmes are designed to support and
upskill all employees of different ranks and responsibilities. To promote
continuing education of employees, the Group has set up its own online
training platform, Channel T, to provide interactive communication
between trainers and employees on all business-related aspects.

To nurture high potential talents for the Group, a Management Trainee
Programme has been rolled out in Mainland China since 2020. To
align with the Group’s omni-channel retailing strategy, we provided
trainees with well-rounded development experience and exposure
through orientation sessions, store attachments and back-office project
management and execution.

In addition to utilising internal training resources, the Group subsidises
employees who require professional qualifications or advanced studies
for specific positions and caters to their specific training needs by
third-party professional trainings. The Group and its management are
dedicated to the continuous development of our employees' capabilities
and we value the personal and professional growth of our employees.
By fostering a culture of continuous learning, we seek to cultivate and
retain our best talents and maintain our competitive positioning in the
market.
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Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Development and Training (continued)

As the pandemic continued, the implementation of social distancing
measures drove us to keep on conducting virtual trainings via video
conferencing platforms such as Zoom, WeCom and Channel T. In 2022,
the percentages of employees trained and average training hours per
employee by gender and employment category are as follows:

EBREEIESR(E)

BERIE(E)

RNEBRE At RIBBEENERRFER
134 %“é’LﬂZoom B EMIE R Channel T
ERFERTAETRLE - 20225
RHRREEERESNZIEER DL
kBEARETKZIOFHRENT

Percentage of Employees ) Percentage of Employees Trained by O —
Trained by Gender Employment Category ([(—_]
JIE=TVaN Pal —_— HE B2 4y = 2 AN O O O
HHSIRI5 0 EHINER A AERITRIEIS 1S ED I 9 0 O
2022 13.1% 86.9% 2022 62.3% 33.8% 3.9%
2021 12.9% 87.1% 2021 65.5% 30.4% 4.1%
Male Female General Staff Middle Management  Upper Management
E Z —RET HEEEAER SEEEAS
Average Training Hours Completed m Average Training Hours Completed m
Per Employee by Gender O O Per Employee by Employment Category O 0O O
’ILEIE 7 - FE 18 S Tk X ley P05 2 ) RIERIEFIE S - 58S Tl I T2
hour /N hour /M
2022 24.5 50.9 2022 61.4 22.5 134
2021 23.5 51.4 2021 57.0 25.4 19.7
Male Female General Staff Middle Management Upper Management
£ L8 —RET HEEEAB BEEEAE
Environment RIR

The Group has made an internal environmental protection pledge
for environmental sustainability, where the Group values its role as a
responsible corporate citizen. For example, the Group bans shark fins,
humphead wrasse and other endangered species from the menu at
corporate functions. To reduce the generation of plastic and paper
waste, wherever feasible, reusable cups are provided for drinking.
Employees are encouraged to follow suit in their private life.

In 2022, we enriched the content of our Group Environmental Policy
to explicitly outlining our climate change and resources management
strategies. All business partners are expected to adhere to the policy.
The Group has also formulated Guidelines for Handling and Discharging
Effluent and Flue Gas, which delineates the proper disposal and
monitoring procedures for hazardous waste. The commitment to the
environment is further communicated to the employees through the
Group’s Code of Conduct.
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Environment (continued) RIE(E)

To demonstrate our commitment in combating climate change BTRBARMPEEYRIES(LERDRE
and reducing our environmental footprint, we set up the following EIRER D BAFERTE T AT 2030FRE
environmental targets for 2030. The Board will keep track on the BEE-E2o T REAEEAERR
Group's progress made against the environmental targets on a regular BEEHEAFENER -

basis.

2030 Targets
2030 F B &

Electricity consumption and electricity-led Water consumption and intensity*
greenhouse gas emissions intensity* HEKERTE"
ERRNENEHMAEREHNEE"

’ 7% at jewellery manufacturing factories
’ 7% at jewellery manufacturing factories RELEHE Y R R 7%
REUERE ZHER D 7%

=Tk

e
e-receipt

Paper Waste Reduction

AR

To increase the use of e-receipt for the
transaction records issued to customers with the
paper waste reduction programme to 70% by 2030
BB F PR AT B 2030 307 A E T Uk
EBREEFHRHEFTFOELRESZET0%

*  per product manufactured, compared to the Group’s average performance in GRS BIREE2016-2019 FHFH
2016-2019 EBEH B

Apart from the targets above, the Group has also developed a roadmap Bt BAES - AREE T T RS
towards decarbonisation. In medium term, we strive to enhance cHHEIME  BRFIEE IR EZE R
our disclosure on emission reduction, including targets set on each B BRRTRBEIREBE - R
environmental aspect and steps taken in achieving them. In the long BEREAENTH - REMES  RABBE
run, we aim to reach decarbonisation with a systematic approach based BERMESR WRIEBEZITERGS AN
on our targets set and by going beyond regulatory requirements. BRI ©

The Group has been advocating sustainable development business AEE-BEEHEEANRRRENER
model through various management approaches and strategies within W RBAREBEEEAREMER  EBEAHF
the dimensions of social responsibilities and environmental protection. BRREMEKEN - 2022F  AEEKA
In 2022, the Group is one of the first corporate clients to open a BEUREA—FRANERITHUAFERE
sustainable account with a renowned bank in Hong Kong. Through the FPONDMERPRP 7 — o FiBZR1T B
bank, we can indirectly support various sustainability projects. EMEE TSR ENSERRER -
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Environment (continued)

We operate in accordance with the local environmental laws and
regulations, and are not aware of any material environmental non-
compliance that would have a significant impact on the environment
or on the Group. We have summarised our efforts in managing climate
risks, energy and resource use, effluent, waste and emissions of air in
the paragraphs below.

Energy and Resources Management

We proactively adopt measures to minimise the environmental impacts
caused by our business operation. The management observes and seizes
opportunities for overall reduction in energy use across the Group.
We have signed up as participants to the Charter on External Lighting
organised by the Hong Kong Government, thereby committing to
switching off store lightings at the preset time. We may even switch
off store lightings earlier than the committed preset time after taking
into account of the operation hours and marketing needs of different
stores. To foster our employees’ awareness, tips and information on
carbon reduction and energy conservation are also disseminated on our
intranet.

During the year, we continued to carry out multiple energy and water
efficiency measures including:

o installing energy efficient lightings such as LED lights in our
standardised offices, factories and stores when feasible;

e controlling billboard and exterior lighting at street level stores with
timer; and

o maintaining indoor temperature at an optimal, comfortable level
to conserve energy.

Energy efficiency, water conservation, waste reduction and other
environmental impact mitigation have all been carefully considered
by the management as part of the design specifications in the
erection of the Shunde factory. Based on the experience gained in the
construction of the Shunde factory, we would also take these factors
into consideration in future building construction. Savings on air-
conditioning are achieved by taking measures to mitigate the heating
effect of the sun, to reduce heat generation by eliminating excess
lighting, and to place furnaces and other heat and emission dissipating
in isolated equipment room wherever feasible. Solar panels are installed
to generate electricity for our staff quarters and canteen. We have
adopted a centralised control system since 2020 to intelligently manage
the air conditioning system such as chilled water flow and temperature
of air handling unit.
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Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

At the same time, various enhancement works have also been
implemented or planned. Our Xian factory established charters to avoid
energy- and water-wasting behaviour, as well as added an inverter
and repurposed used water in our manufacturing process to save the
resources. We aim to reduce water consumption and intensity by 7% at
jewellery manufacturing factories by 2030. We are gradually upgrading
the air conditioners to Grade 1 at Hong Kong factory.

B5 (&)

BEFEREFEE (&

A RMACKETLFIAZHERET
B RMNAZBERBNE  NEER
BRERAKNTTA  WREEREF BN
—AEEBRURERKULEER o FM
#) B AR 2N 2030 F 3 2 BTG SUEIRE 2 R
FRFRKEREERD 7% - RIFEERSR
BERE AR REERBGENESR o

/ Intensity
(Gigajoule (GJ) or Tonnes/
HKD million Turnover)
zE
Total Consumption® (FHEESME,
mERe" BEEBBTERT)
Type of Resource Unit
BRER B 2022 2021 2022 2021
Energy Indirect Energy | Megawatt Hour (MWh) 28,452 27,636 N/A N/A
BER Consumption | JKF B iR TEE
— Purchased
electricity | Gigajoule (GJ) 102,426 99,491 5.3 5.1
REaERE FIEE
-BEE
Direct Energy Gigajoule (GJ) 1,296 1,481
Consumption | FIKEE
~ Fuel'
B
- R
Water Freshwater Tonnes 109,041 114,665 5.5 5.8
K oK 7 -

*  figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

- Energy conversion factors used are referenced from the Accounting Methods
and Reporting Guidelines for Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Enterprises in
Other Industries by National Development and Reform Commission and The
Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited (“HK & China Gas”).

Fuel used in the operations includes natural gas, towngas, liquefied
petroleum gas and naphtha.
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Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

We will keep track of our energy and water consumption and regularly
review the effectiveness of our current initiatives to further improve
our performance in energy and water use as well as greenhouse gas

B5 (&)

BEFEREFEE (&

RIH =B BRI RAKERH
oY ERREAMBABENFRL
DA — 25 20 & AR BE TR MK B R {2 A DA

Direct greenhouse gas emissions are emissions from sources that are owned
or controlled by us (Scope 1), including use of fuel for stationary combustion.
The data were calculated based on Guidelines to Account for and Report
on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong and the World Resources
Institute’s Greenhouse Gas Accounting Tool for Chinese Cities (Pilot Version
1.0).

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions are emissions that are consequences of
the activities of our operations, but occur at sources owned or controlled
by other entities (Scope 2), including purchased electricity. The data were
calculated based on the default factors provided by electricity providers in
Hong Kong, such as Power Assets Holdings Limited, CLP Holdings Limited
and HK & China Gas. The emissions by electricity purchased in China were
calculated based on the FY2022 China’s Regional Grid Average CO, Emission
Factors.
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emissions. KRERBHRAENRE
/ Intensity
(Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide
Equivalent (tCO,e)/
HKD million Turnover)
BE
Total Emission” (A —FE(tREE
Scope of Greenhouse BYEBE" BHREBTEXH)
Gas Emissions Unit
BERBHNEE By 2022 2021 2022 2021
Scope 1 - Direct Tonnes of Carbon 80 82 0.8 0.8
Greenhouse Gas Dioxide Equivalent
Emissions (tCO,e)
gE1-EHE& NSl EE
BERE
g
Scope 2 - Indirect Tonnes of Carbon 15,670 16,060
Greenhouse Gas Dioxide Equivalent
Emissions (tCO,e)
CER AW REE
RERE
HE -
figures are rounded to the nearest whole number * BFEEIRIELEEH

B ERBEH BRI R G A LB A
B RIFHE R (FEE 1) - B EER RS
W ZEFHFORB(EEZEY (BE £
THRRSGE ) A0 E R R %
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Climate Change Management

Climate change brings about potential risks and disturbances to
business operations. Consistent with our risk management policies,
our management is delegated to identify, analyse, evaluate, respond,
monitor and communicate risks related to climate change. To
understand and mitigate accordingly the significant climate-related
issues that would affect our business, we have commissioned a third-
party consultant to conduct a formal climate change impact assessment.

The assessment focused on the physical, transition and supply chain risks
posed by climate change in the Group's jewellery manufacturing and
retail operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The assessment
was performed by reviewing the Group’s business model, conducting
desktop research on the likelihood and impact of climate-related risks,
and engaging internal stakeholders on the mitigation measures to
address the impacts of climate change.

Physical risks

Operations located in Mainland China and Hong Kong are identified
with physical risks such as extreme wind or cyclone, flooding and
water stress. These extreme weather events would pose threats on our
business and the safety of our employees, such as property damages,
disturbance to daily operations, as well as disruption to the supply
chain of the Group. The impact of climate change has been mitigated
by various measures. Business contingency plans for our manufacturing
and retail operations are in place. Emergency response preparation
against flood is regularly reviewed. Employees are also guided with
corresponding work arrangements and safety precautions. To prevent
impact from flooding, all production equipment is placed above the
ground floor. The Group has also set water and energy consumption
reduction targets for our factories, and closely monitor the consumption
to enhance climate resilience. We will also monitor weather conditions
during severe weather events to prevent property harm, employee
injury, and disruptions.

Physical risk is well observed throughout the Group's supply chain, such
as the sourcing of pearls, where the production of oysters and mussels
are prone to environmental stress under climate change. The Group
has taken supply stability and product pricing into its current business
consideration, and incorporated sustainability as key priority in supplier
screening and assessment.

The Group believes that with our ongoing climate change adaptation,
mitigation and emergency response, physical risks would have minimal
impact on our business. We will continue to monitor the situation and
update our management approach to climate change.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Climate Change Management (continued)

Transition risks

Decarbonisation is one of the key national sustainability trends related
to climate change. To achieve the country’s 2060 carbon neutrality
goal, more preparatory initiatives shall be established for the Group.
The Group's operation may be affected by regulatory policies and legal
risk may arise from Mainland China’'s emissions trading scheme, and
voluntary agreements such as the green energy certificate programme.
We monitor energy efficiency performance and strive to reduce our
environmental impact and stay abreast of relevant laws to better prepare
the Group for adaptation measures.

A shift in market preference from consumer expectations to
sustainability commitment could harm the Group's reputation if we fail
to meet these expectations. Market risk from increasing environmental
and social awareness of customers is also identified with relevance.
We closely monitor our ESG performance and strategies to ensure our
performance is in line with the customers’ expectations.

The sourcing of gold and platinum is also subject to transition risks due
to urgent diversion of investment for climate risk mitigation and demand
from low-carbon technologies. In response, the Group maintains close
partnership with suppliers and secures the supplies of conventional
materials from multi-sourcing.

Wastewater Management

The Group’s major use of water occurs at its factories in the course
of manufacturing jewellery. The wastewater may contain acids, alkali,
various chemicals and heavy metals. At the factories in Shunde and
Hong Kong, there is an onsite facility for neutralisation, deionisation and
sedimentation of the wastewater. The treated water is certified safe to
discharge into the municipal network, and the slag is properly handled
by licensed operators. At the smaller factories, wastewater is put in safe
storage for removal by licensed operators at regular intervals.

BE HERERKRE
RiE (&)
RIZEILEHE(E
BRER

AT BREE BN ERRRFE
BREBE 22— BEHBER 2060 FixH M
B AEBEBHTELEHERE - A&
BB IEEBRNTZE MR
BABERBERR S5t 8l kB iR (W4 e
BERFEERTE) A REE £ AR o B
ERERASRE  BORLHERENY
2 YREZESVNEBEE  BEE
B SR i P T 24 o

HEBENMSRFOAEEREERA
BRRAG MAMTENEELHE
RHEREAKENEE - XFAZRSM
REMHEEATROMISER T EIEE
e BMZIEERMANRRE HekE
BRBRRE - AEREMORBATEE

RHHIE -

BB A 2R A R R L R B AR B g
MBERRESNASHRBEXERR
e Al AEBEAREERSETAE
BE YWRBZHRBUERERREN
HIE o

BKEHE
ARETERREREREREANRK -
BKAgEEER B SELEmhED
B EIREREENRERE Y REKE
TR - BBEFRUBRA RN © BKER
BRANZEHBRETAEEBE B
HEaBEREEZERE - £/ ERBE
A BPEEKZERT - ARBEFER
fEBEHRE -

-

Total Volume of Effluent Discharged”

BkgHBE
Type of Emission Unit
BERCE R B 2022 2021
Wastewater from Jewellery Manufacturing Tonnes 25,722 33,285
RERUEEL 2K W //

*  figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

Compared with 2021, the Group discharged less wastewater with effort
of improving efficient water use during the year. We will continue to
monitor the volume and quality of the effluent to ensure it is discharged
appropriately and responsibly.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management

Another area of focus in the Group’s environmental management
policies is waste reduction at source. The Group has placed much
emphasis on the reusability in the packaging of its products by making
use of recyclable, reusable, and biodegradable packaging materials
whenever possible. Customers will find our boxes useful for storing
other items if not used for their jewellery. It is ingrained into our
culture to reuse suitable containers and boxes for transportation. As
a recognition of our continuous effort in waste reduction, the offices,
factories and laboratory of the Group were bestowed the Wastewi$e
Certificate (Excellence Level) by Hong Kong Green Organisation
Certification. Compared with 2021, an increase of packaging materials
were used and distributed this year. The Group will continue to study
possible ways to avoid undue and unnecessary use of packaging materials
and recycle whenever appropriate.

Packaging Materials Used (Tonnes)*
FTABEYL ()

*  figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

There are other measures for further savings but heightened awareness:

e to cut down the use of disposable cups, all staff members are
encouraged to use glass and cups; and wherever feasible guests are
served with those as well;

e to reuse printed paper before recycling; and

e to promote paperless office by using electronic communications.

Recycling bins are generally available and employees are encouraged to
make use of them. We have participated in the Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence for many years and recycled resources used
in our operations wherever possible. All recyclables are collected and
handled by recognised recycling organisations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management (continued)

Where options of recycling and reuse have been fully considered, the
Group engages authorised or licensed contractors in the disposal of
general waste and hazardous waste generated at our manufacturing
factories or at our offices.

The Group endeavours to reduce use of hazardous materials wherever
feasible. For example, the factory in Hong Kong has changed its
electroforming processes to use non-cyanide chemicals. Overall,
hazardous waste has always been handled by qualified contractors in
compliance with applicable local laws.

The following figures outline waste generated and recycled in our
operations:

B ()

BERWEE (&)
ERDEERURERMRER  ~&HE
ERERERA CABRR  BRETLE
BEIRRAEMELN—REEVLEE
BEY -

AEBRNEATHERATHIEREEY
Boflm EEBRFECREREERET
Fr o BRASERL MM LR mETT - BEEM
T AEREVUERBAEBAMNEMN
NaEHARNARE -

THEFHRAAEERBEAMES R EK
ZREEY

Hazardous Waste Generated

FTELHBEEEREY
Highly Acidic Waste Others (e.g. waste with inorganic cyanide,
S REEY) organic solvent)
HippgEzY) (Flansmsscy -
BRI BREEERY))
Tonnes Tonnes
WA 158
7 7
6 6.0 6 ]
5 5 5. 4.8
4.1
4 4
3 3
2 2
1 1
AN AN
2022 2021 2022 2021

Non-Hazardous Waste Generated*

FTELRBEZEFEEY"
Paper Waste General Waste
Tonnes ,%EE %ﬁ@ﬁ% Tonnes —ﬂﬁﬁﬁ?fﬂ
7] 7]
70 70
62
60 > 60
50 51 3 50
40 W 34
30 30
20 20 20
10 7 10
0 BN
2022 2021 2022 2021
B Generated 4 Recycled 11

*  figures are rounded to the nearest whole number
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management (continued)

Due to the resumption of most of our operations this year, an increased
amount of hazardous and non-hazardous waste has been recorded by
the Group compared to previous year. We will continue to promote
waste reduction measures, such as reuse and recycling, in our operations
to improve resource effectiveness.

Air Emissions Management’

Jewellery manufacturing generates air emissions that may contain acids,
alkali, other chemicals or traces of metals and dust. Our workplaces are
equipped, depending on the scale of the operation and the nature of
the processes employed, with equipment ranging from fume cupboards
and filters to full-scale scrubber networks to render the air clean for
discharge into the atmosphere as per the requirement of local regulatory
authorities. In particular, the scrubber system in Shunde factory has
airflow control to keep noxious emissions out of the working area.

Community Involvement

The Group believes that its involvement in the community can foster
social harmony and development and is simply good corporate
citizenship.

Promotion of Arts and Cultural Development

The Group is keen to foster the growth and development of Hong
Kong's arts and cultural landscape, and we believe this encourages
positive societal values for the expression of thoughts and feelings
through design and innovation. For example, we have been a corporate
partner with Hong Kong Sinfonietta and Maestro Circle member of the
Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra for many years. The Hong Kong
Repertory Theatre has likewise been receiving programme sponsorship.

The Group also collaborated with Victoria and Albert Museum (V&A)
in London on the creation of an innovative shopping adventure, which
integrates an interactive museum experience into a jewellery store, by
launching two V&A Chow Sang Sang jewellery concept stores in Hong
Kong and Macau respectively. To promote arts and culture, the stores
provide guests an interactive and ambient experience that transcends
time and place by combining traditional and classical art with brand-
new digital technology.

Air emissions are not material to the Group’s jewellery manufacturing and
retail businesses. The types of emissions and respective emissions data of
HKEx ESG Guide are therefore not reported.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Community Involvement (continued)

Community Development

The Group has contributed to various charitable themes such as youth
education, social service, community care, child and elderly care, care
for special needs and groups on raising environmental awareness.
During the year, we have supported many charitable organisations
through monetary and in-kind donations and through participation in
their charitable events. The Group donated to a number of organisations
including The Salvation Army, St. James’ Settlement People’s Food Bank
and Yan Chai Hospital.

Recognising the importance of quality education for young people,
the Group provides scholarship funds to The Hong Kong Academy
for Performing Arts, and the City University of Hong Kong and has
subsidised the "Sustained Vitality, Ever Rejuvenated Education aid
fund” (£ETBELBEES ) run by Shanghai Education Foundation
of Huangpu District. Apart from offering scholarship, the Group also
participates in the promotion of STEM education in Hong Kong. With
our long history and expertise in precious metal testing, we hope to
transfer our talent and science knowledge to our next generations in
Hong Kong. Our STEAM workshop EE & XTI {Eth (with the element
of "Arts” incorporated into STEM) has been implemented for providing
opportunity to students to learn scientific knowledge and gain wider
exposure. The workshops covered interesting topics like gold panning,
alchemy and silverware restoration. Over 500 participants from 10
secondary schools and a social service organisation joined our workshops
in 2022.

Light Be (25 ) is Hong Kong's first social realty company aiming to
help “temporarily impoverished households” who are capable to escape
poverty and continue independently to move upwards upon receipt of
short period of assistance via its housing schemes such as Light Homes.
Light Be looks for landlords which care about our society and are willing
to lease residential units at a lower price to it for development as Light
Homes. As Light Be's belief conforms with our corporate philosophy
“Sustained Vitality, Ever Rejuvenated”, meaning the continual
improvement and pursuit of sustainability, the Group is delighted to
participate in its housing schemes.

The Group has been collaborating with The Salvation Army in organising
charity events. A workshop named "Ef44 x Ittt ELF TIEH"
was held in some of our stores, providing an opportunity for the
rehabilitated persons to interact with the community and supporting a
charity sale of exquisite products made by the rehabilitated persons. The
event received an overwhelming support.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Community Involvement (continued)

Community Development (continued)

The Group not only supports Hong Kong community but also extends
the support to Mainland China, Macau, and Taiwan. Our offices in all
regions are encouraged to initiate or participate in charitable events
targeted to serve local community associations and organisations for
youngsters, elderly, and the environmental protection. To encourage
participation by our staff, the Group sponsors the activities and
encourages interested employees to become volunteers. Employees
are eligible to apply for volunteer leave, which further encourages the
participation of meaningful charitable work.

Our event "EA 4 Az # " has entered its third year since 2020 and has
received tremendous support from our staff. With the “green energy
points” accumulated over these years, Ant Forest has committed to
plant a total of 153 real trees in Northwest China.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group as a whole strives to adhere to the highest standards of
transparency, accountability and corporate governance, balancing and
protecting the interests of shareholders, employees, customers and
suppliers. The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31
December 2022 with the applicable code provisions as set out in Part 2
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code") contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, except for the deviations from code provisions
C.2.1 and C.5.1 which are explained in the relevant paragraphs of this
report. The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the operations and growth of the business of
the Group.

The Board

Board composition

The Board comprises ten Directors, of whom four Executive Directors
("EDs"), two Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) and four Independent
Non-executive Directors (“INEDs"). In addition, a list containing the
names of the Directors and their roles and functions is available on the
websites of the Company and HKEC.

Chairman and Group General Manager

Code provision C.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing holds both positions of the Chairman
and the Group General Manager of the Company. The Board is of the
opinion that the present board structure provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies.

Independence of Directors

Save for the relationships disclosed in the biographical details set out
on pages 4 to 8 of this annual report, the Directors do not have family,
material financial, business or other relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs written annual
confirmation of his independence as required under the Listing Rules
and therefore the Board considers all INEDs to be independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

NEDs (including INEDs) are appointed for a specific term of not more
than three years pursuant to the then Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. There will be no fixed term of their appointment, subject to the
re-election after the expiry of their then current term. All Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
re-election in annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws.

Securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Directors are
reminded on a reqular basis of their obligations under the Model Code.

All Directors have written to confirm, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year.

Employees who have access to inside information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with written internal guidelines (the “Written
Internal Guidelines”) that follow the Model Code.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Directors have continuously been updated on major developments of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Directors’ continuous professional development (continued)
During the year, the Directors participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided their records of training to the Company. Details are as
follows:
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Training "
Name of Directors BExng gy
Executive Directors: HITES !
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing A e v
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing Bkt v/
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing B EE v
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing B2 e v
Non-executive Directors: FHITES:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERE 4
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam ML A v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYEHTES :
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FREEAE 4
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun PRIFENE £ v
Dr. LO King Man ERNEL v
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung BINEESRE v
Note: Wizt -
The mode of trainings includes but not limited to attending briefing, conference, BIFAEATRRENGHE 2% A

online trainings and seminars, and/or reading materials on relevant topics.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group. It determines the overall strategic direction and management
objectives, oversees significant operational and financial matters and
ensures a framework of risk controls is in place. The Board is also
responsible for nurturing the Company’s culture, which aligns with the
purpose, values and strategy of the Company, and promoting it to all
staff and embedding the same in the business decisions and operations.

The Company has provided to each Director a Directors’ Manual, which
includes the statutory obligations, duties and responsibilities for being a
director. The Directors’ Manual is updated from time to time to reflect
the latest developments in those areas.

Internal guidelines with continuing updates in areas on the Company’s
and the Directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, and the latest
developments or material changes on ordinances, rules or regulations
are provided to Directors from time to time.
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Board (continued)

The Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who
is responsible for implementing the Group’s business strategies and
managing the daily business operations under the leadership of the
Chairman/Group General Manager and the Group Deputy General
Manager, both of whom are EDs.

Management support

All Directors were provided with monthly updates on the Group’'s
business, operations, and financial matters as well as timely information
that may have affected the Group's businesses. Comprehensive Board
papers are prepared and distributed quarterly to Directors to keep them
informed.

Directors have free access to management for additional information, as
and when required and may solicit independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.

Attendance Records of Directors

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the annual general meeting held in 2022 are
set out as follows:

>
e
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EXeRERER(E)

EXERAREFRETERERR &
BECHRVITEFZLERSIR KE
BRENEERREEREET  BERT
ARBEZEBRELEEAERBER -

EEEXE
FEESEHRGERAREER 2EK
WBEEZBARMEN  URAREFE
AEBEXBZEREH -EREETH/
ARMEERUEFARCETEX  £IK
LRESHEMEH -

EETBEREREEEARGRIEH
MEFERTASKBELEXER  BF
RNV

EENHELE

SEEHER2002FRNBINESTENE
EZEeeR  URBRERAFAENLE
BT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

ERLERY/BIRY
Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
Board Committee ~ Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors BEpg Exg ERZEE  §MzEe REZEE  RRBAFAE
Executive Directors: BTES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing BKpcEE 33 - - - "N
Chairman and Group General Manager FEFREEGLE
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing B EE 3/3 - - n "N
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing ARKEE 33 - - - 7
Group Deputy General Manager £E5EeE
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing FAEsEtt 33 - - - 11
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERE 313 212 n n n
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam EMmLE 3/3 212 n n n
Independent Non-executive Directors: ~ BYF#HTEE:
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FRBRL 33 22 "N 0 1
Chairman of the three Committees HZEEB21E
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RmEE £ 33 22 11 i i
Dr. LO King Man ESXiEL 3B 0 1/1 1 1
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung ErsE 33 22 17 171 17
- The Director is not a member - EFUHAE
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Attendance Records of Directors (continued)

Code provision C.5.1 of the Code stipulates that regular board meetings
should be held at least four times a year. During the year, due to the
fifth wave of covid-19, the Company had only held three regular board
meetings.

During the year, the Chairman also held a meeting with the INEDs
without the presence of other Directors.

Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in proposed transactions or contemplated issues are required to
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

Board Independence

The Company recognises that board independence is crucial in good
corporate governance and board effectiveness. A board independence
evaluation mechanism (the “Mechanism”) was established during the
year to ensure a strong independent element on the Board, which
allows the Board effectively exercises independent judgment to better
safeguard shareholders’ interests.

The governance framework and the Mechanisms are as follows:

e four out of the ten Directors are INEDs, which meets the
requirements of the Listing Rules that the Board must have at least
three INEDs and must appoint INEDs representing at least one-
third of the Board.

. the Nomination Committee is established with clear terms of
reference to identify suitable candidates, including INEDs, for
appointment as Directors.

. a director nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) is in place
with details of the process and criteria of identifying, selecting,
recommending, cultivating and integrating new directorship.

. the Nomination Committee will assess annually the independence
of all INEDs and to affirm if each of them still satisfies the criteria
of independence as set out in the Listing Rules and is free from
any relationships and circumstances which are likely to affect, or
could appear to affect, their independent judgement.
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Board Independence (continued)

o any Director may seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company's expense, upon prior
reasonable request being made to the Board.

J a dedicated meeting with the Chairman annually will provide
the INEDs an opportunity and channel to express their views in a
confidential manner.

. Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the
Company'’s senior management independently, if necessary.

The Board reviewed and considered that the Mechanism is effective.

Board Committees

The Board is supported by three committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, whose respective
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company and
HKEC.

Composition of each of the three committees is shown in the section
headed “Attendance Records of Directors” above.

Audit Committee

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to monitor the
integrity of the Group's consolidated financial statements, oversee
the Group’s financial reporting systems, internal control and risk
management procedures and the relationship with the external auditor.
Members possess appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the Group's accounting
principles and practices, development in accounting standards and
associated impacts on the Group, risk management issues, audit
findings, compliance, strategy summary and financial reporting matters,
and the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. The Committee discussed the above matters, where
appropriate, with management and external auditor.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy, determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual EDs and senior management, and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of NEDs.

The remuneration of Directors consists of a basic annual fee with
additional payments for serving on Committees. It is not set individually.
EDs receive additional pay packages by virtue of their positions in
management.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the remuneration packages
and bonus payment of individual EDs and senior management and
reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on Directors’ fees.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing the
independence of INEDs, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and determining the policy
for nomination of Directors.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board. It also assessed and confirmed the
independence of the INEDs, and made recommendation to the Board
on the nomination of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, Mr. Stephen TING
Leung Huel, Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung and Ms. Genevieve CHOW
Karwing, the retiring directors, for re-election as Directors by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
27 May 2022.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Group's corporate strategy. All Board appointments are based on
meritocracy, and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

In determining the Board composition, the Committee considers a
number of aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry and regional
experience and other qualities.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of one female
and nine male Directors with different professional background and
industry experience. The Company is committed to expanding the
gender diversity as and when new appointment of director is to be
made. The Board considered that the Company has achieved the
objective of board diversity during the year.

The Group has also taken, and continues to take, steps to promote
diversity at all levels of its workforce. Opportunities for employment,
training and career development are equally opened to all eligible
employees without discrimination. Currently, the male to female
ratio in the workforce of the Group including senior management is
approximately 1:4. Taking into the account that our customer base is
mostly female and our female staff could better cater for their needs,
the Board considers that the gender diversity in workforce is currently
balanced.

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets out the
selection criteria and process in relation to nomination and appointment
of directors of the Company and aims to ensure the continuity of the
Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

o character and integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the business and
corporate strategy of the Group;

. the Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted
by the Committee for achieving diversity on the Board,;

. requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and assessment of the
independence of the candidates; and

° commitment to understanding the Company and its industry,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Upon receipt of a proposal on appointment of new director, the
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate based on
the criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship. If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Committee and/or the Board should rank them
by order of preference based on the needs of the Group and the
Committee should then make recommendation to the Board. For
any person nominated by shareholder(s) for election as a director
at the general meeting of the Company, the Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine the eligibility of such candidate, and thus make
recommendation to the shareholders on the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.

For re-election of director at the general meeting, the Committee and/
or the Board should review the overall contribution and service made
by the retiring director to the Group, and consider whether the retiring
director’s level of participation and performance on the Board meet the
criteria as set out above. The Committee and/or the Board should then
make recommendation to the shareholders on the proposed re-election
of director at the general meeting.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has undertaken to perform the corporate governance
functions and is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and keeping up to date with the latest
requirements of the Code and the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board reviewed the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Written
Internal Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the Code and
the disclosure in this report.
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Financial Reporting

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group's
state of affairs, results and cash flows in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

External auditor

The reporting responsibilities of the Group’s independent external
auditor, Ernst & Young, on the Group's consolidated financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 71
to 78 of this annual report.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended its re-appointment as the
Company's external auditor at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The services provided by Ernst & Young and the associated fees thereof
paid/payable for 2022 were as follows:

Audit i
Taxation 7%
Others Hif

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that adequate risk
management and internal controls are in place to safequard the Group's
assets and manage risks (including ESG risks). The Board reviews the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. Policies and procedures are designed for providing
reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss and
managing risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the
Group’s objectives.

Risk Management

Management is delegated to identify, analyse, evaluate, respond,
monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity, function or
process within its scope of responsibility and authority. For risk control
and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address those that are not. Management
develops action plans to address potential risks and contingency plans
for possible loss scenarios. Accidents and other situations involving loss
or near-loss will be investigated and properly documented as part of the
effort to manage risks. Risk assessment is carried out biannually. Key
risks and action plans are identified by management and reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out as
follows:

AEEEL L BEE R TEEAFWT -

o Retail market and supply chain suffer from disruptions caused
by covid-19 and the uncertainties in the global economic and
political environment and the weakened consumer demand.
We see opportunities to grow by adopting omni-channel
retailing and increase customer loyalty via product and brand
differentiation.

o The Group’s operations will be affected by multiple risk
factors related to the manufacture and retail of jewellery and
distribution of watches, the wholesale of precious metals and
e-commerce platform operation. Policies and procedures are
designed to minimise the risks.

. Adverse effects which may arise from changes in laws and
regulations affecting our businesses. Legal and regulatory
compliance policies are in place to mitigate against the risks.

J Details of financial risk management objectives and policies are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Internal Control

The purpose of internal control is to reasonably provide the assurance
for the compliance of its operation and management with regulations
and laws, assets security, and authenticity and integrity of financial
report and related information, improve the efficiency and effectiveness
of operating activities and promote the realisation of development
strategy of the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Internal Control (continued)
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Major internal controls currently in place within the Group included
the following:

PEEHE L BABERERUTERE

o An Internal Audit team conducts regular audits of different
aspects of the operations and reports any findings to the Audit
Committee.

J Business plans are prepared annually. Income and expenditure
are subject to regular budgetary review.

. Policies are set to cover the integrity of trading practices,
safekeeping of customer assets, and credit control for jewellery
and watch store operations and the wholesale of precious
metals.

J All inventory movements are properly recorded and reconciled,
and verification and cross-checking with source documents
procedures are in place. Inventory level is under continuous
review and adjusted regularly taking into account of prevailing
market conditions.

. Major or material connected transactions require pre-approval of
INEDs and all continuing connected transactions are reviewed on
a reqgular basis.

. Information access is managed on a need-to-know basis.
Guidelines and procedures are in place to protect personal data
and to ensure the integrity of communication systems.

. The Group strictly prohibits unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information. Disclosure of inside information guide has
been established and only the authorised staff are allowed to
communicate with parties outside the Group.

o  ZERZERHEBEFETIETS
NEEZ UAEZZEEREME
FEER °

o  BERRXHBEE  WARRXETE
HMEER 2 EE -

s RENEREZEXBLESEHE
EBOARREERH 2 BT &
EREEPEEREEEM -

s FMAGFERBHZELHNGY T
ARRFERXZENGE - FE
KFEREEROTSERSERE
W TE LA

o AEEFEYRERNFERHUBES
BUFHITESTALE - YR
BRARERERS -

o  BREMDREMNGTAEEEE -
FTiE5| A2 P A RIS (B A B #Y e R
BRER TR

o  AEEBRREREREEAEERIANRT
BE - LHIFTREAREEMES
EBAFESEEIRIAALTERER
AR -

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group's risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2022, with reference to the risk management and internal
audit reports and the representations made by management and
concluded that adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are being maintained. The annual review
also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and their training programmes and budget as well as those
relating to the Company’s ESG performance and reporting. There were
no significant areas of concern identified during the year.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
SFHEEEBRBEAERRQA

IH

67

EXeRERZESRHHE2022F12
ANNBEFEASEEZRBREE KA
EMRG  K2ZRBEERNBDELR
EREBEEL ZRilE  BRAEER
BERATEERZERERRADELRR
B FEZRINERINAEEESR -

NEPEZ RS ERB A A E A REARR

AR HEREARRBRMERNER

ETERERESR FEBREIZEIRER
EREERERH - FAWEBEIREKNE

E@&%lﬁc’

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022 4 3R



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s memorandum
of association and bye-laws. A copy of the latest consolidated version
of the memorandum of association and bye-laws is available on the
websites of the Company and HKEC. Resolution for amendments to the
Company's bye-laws will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. For more details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 23 March 2023.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that human capital is a key asset to sustainable
business growth. The objective of the Group’s human resources
management is to reward and recognise performing staff by providing
a competitive remuneration package and implementing a performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement. We believe
these measures could further enhance employee involvement and
engagement as part of a team.

The Group is committed to providing high-quality products and services
to its customers. Apart from our professional sale representatives in
stores, we also have a dedicated team of customer relations personnel
for quick response to enquiries and complaints. We believe that
customer satisfaction is the key to our long-term success.

The Group values mutually beneficial long-term relationships with
its suppliers. Steady supply of high-quality raw materials is crucial
for us. The Group is committed to developing stable and sustainable
partnership among its suppliers.

Corporate Communication

Shareholder communication

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Company’s shareholders and other stakeholders. A shareholders’
communication policy (the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) with
the objectives of ensuring a transparent and timely communication
with shareholders and other stakeholders via various means has been
established.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Communication (continued)

Shareholder communication (continued)

Our company website (www.chowsangsang.com) is one of the principal
channels of communication with the shareholders, investors and
consumers alike where a wealth of information about the Company can
be found. All corporate communications of the Company, including but
not limited to annual and interim reports, announcements, circulars,
terms of reference of the committees and other corporate information
are available on this website.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as the chairman of the three Committees and other
members of the respective committees are available to answer questions
at the general meetings.

To solicit and get feedback from the shareholders, the following
channels are available to shareholders to express their views on matters
affecting the Company:

1. the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar for enquiries on
shareholdings;

2. the company secretary of the Company for enquiries about
corporate governance or other matters; and

3. whistleblowing mechanism.

Taking into account of the existing communication channels, the Board
considered that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy has been
properly implemented during the year and is effective.

Investor communication

Management also attends meetings with financial analysts and fund
managers from time to time. These meetings allow management to
maintain close contact with investors which facilitate their understanding
of the Group's strategies and operations.

Internal communication

The Group's staff members are linked by the Group's intranet for
prompt sharing of information. Regular meetings of staff members from
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan are held to share and discuss
issues on achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, actual operational
practices, local rules and regulations and compliance practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM") of the Company. Shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company may send a written request to the Board to request for an
SGM.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company's registered office for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with
the requirements under section 74 of the Companies Act once a valid
requisition is received. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholders concerned or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholders concerned as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition; or

(b)

not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company's registered office for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director” available on the website of the
Company.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary at 27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (email: ir@chowsangsang.com).

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEESBEBEBRARRASA

70

>
e
mR
o
ey
off

IR RAER (&)

REBRRREZZH AEEWHQEH
B WEARSARBZAMPEERE  Fi
WHEANBRARIME -

ADBREEBEMERER - SRIVEE
THRELVERS  BERRERER
AERTAGRZRERERNELCEM -
MR ERZALEA 21BN EEEREF
EXRABAE  AIABBRRAEMAR

RE—FULBRREROA LRI BTTIAME
RAETABHAE  MARAERNZEZEH

%%H%ﬁ%%@*ﬁ@ﬁﬁ?ﬁ?im
FEREER -

ATRERERERAR ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%% £
(IREgELEXRENEZE)  UHEHZ
&

(@ MRFEKBREARFEREZEIIRN

—tn2—(5%) 2 EMKEHE :
5
(b) ALRI00RLF A AR BB 2K

o

REBRFRELZUHEINEZ 2 FLE
FR%Z 1,000 @R ES WW%L%E
ZRAMBEARARNRR 2 FMPERE @ Bt
AU HEABRRWE - ARFIREEBN
NHEE BERDREETHRELINLER
B BEREARBRAREFTIRS0HKE
CHERERMEECER o

_$

FRRAMASERRAERT 2R
ERON T%ﬁ%ﬁﬂhﬁk%%ki%
KRR o

BRRUBZBRAWENEDSIAME
ZeREEARBIT LEREE
NERDEXKEENK27E(F H
ir@chowsangsang.com) ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022 F %


mailto:ir@chowsangsang.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

e
EY:

To the shareholders of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 198, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibil